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PART

Item Business

General

Cobra Electronics Corporation the Company incorporated in Delaware in 1961 is traded on The NASDAQ
Stock Market under the symbol COBR The Company is leading designer and marketer of two-way mobile

communications products in the United States Canada and Europe holding the number one or strong number

two position in each of its longstanding product lines and targeting similarposition for marine VHF radios and

power inverters The Company has 47-year track record of innovation and the development of award-winning

products and is an industry leader in developing technology applications that serve consumers needs

Management believes that the Companys future success depends upon its ability to predict and respond in

timely and effective manner to changes in the markets it serves Product performance reliability price

availability and service are the main competitive factors The Companys sales are dependent upon timely

introduction of new products which incorporate new features desired by consumers at competitive prices

Cobra is leading brand in Citizens Band radios radar detectors speed camera detection and two-way radios

In late 2006 the Company acquired Performance Products Limited PPL UK-based designer and marketer

of mobile navigation and photo-enforcement detection products primarily marketed under the Snooper brand

PPL also has developed and markets the Enigma database which was rebranded as the AURATM database in

January 2009 of photo-enforcement locations in the UK and elsewhere in Europe providing drivers equipped

with Snooper mobile navigation and detection devices with advance warning of speed cameras and hazardous

conditions The Company has established PPL as reporting segment for financial reporting purposes

The Company is well known for innovation and its responsiveness to consumer needs in each of the following

product lines

Two-way radios FRS GMRS and PMR

Radar detectors

Citizens Band radios

Power inverters

Marine consumer electronics

Photo-enforcement and safety detection

Recent Developments

Innovation remains the hallmark of the Companys success as demonstrated by just few of its recent product

introductions and other recent developments

The Company announced the 2009 launch of the following products

Cobra Segment

XRS 9345/9445/9545/9645/9745/9845/9945/9955/9960Gradar detectors

XRS R8IR100wireless remote radar detectors

CPI 480/880high power inverters

CXT 85/90/400two-way radios

CXR 700/800/900/920 Camo-two-way radios



CIR 1000A/2000Ainternet radios

BT 200B luetooth handset

LED 8/60worklights

CM 300-OO4/330-0O1/140-002marjne accessories

Advanced Universal Road Alert AURAdatabase

PPL Segment

S2000 Venturaportable navigation for RVs and motor homes

100golf range fmder and golf course information

LYNXTMreal-time database communication and updates

The XRS 9345 9445 and 9545 are 14 Band radar/laser detectors that feature POP Detection and IntelliMute/

IntelliMuteTM Pro The XRS 9645 9745 and 9845 are 15 Band radar/laser detectors that feature IntelliMute

Pro and the XRS 9845 features USB connection for an optional GPS locator that will provide access to the

AURA database of photo-enforcement locations The XRS 9945 9955 and R8 are 15 Band radar/laser detectors

that feature IntelliMute Pro IntelliScopelM Frequency Display Mode and an optional GPS locator The XRS
9955 and 9960G feature IntelliViewTM and 1.5 inch color OLED display The XRS R8 is 15 Band remote radar

detector that features IntelliMute Pro full color OLED IntelliScope frequency display mode and an optional

GPS locator The XRS R1OG includes the features of the R8 plus an point GPS compass latitude/longitude

information and GPS locator with lifetime subscription to the AURA database

The CPI 480 and 880 are high-power inverters with USB output The CPI 480 provides 400 watts of continuous

power and 800 watts of peak charging power The CPI 880 provides 800 watts of continuous power and 1600

watts of peak charging power

The CXT 85 and 90 are two-way radios with 22 channels rechargeable batteries dual AC charger and

combination speaker/mic/charge jack The CXT 85 has up to 14 mile
range and the CXT 90 has up to an 18

mile range The CXT 400 is two-way radio with 22 channels rechargeable batteries wall charger 10 channel

NOAA radio and
range of up to 22 miles

The CXR 700 800 900 and 920 Camo are extended range two-way radios and feature 22 channels rechargeable

lithium ion battery pack dual port desktop charger and wall charger The CXR 800 900 and 920 Camo feature

10 channel NOAA radio The CXR 920 Camo features camouflage skin as well as two boom speaker

microphone The CXR 700 has range of up to 25 miles the CXR 800 has range of up to 27 miles and the

CXR 900 and 920 Camo have range of up to 30 miles

The CIR 1000A and CIR 2000A are new internet radios which provide access to over 10000 global radio

stations the ability to search for stations by country region or genre are compatible with wireless security

protocols WEP WPA and WPA2 stream wireless music from your PC or MAC and list artist and song
information The CIR 2000A includes the l000A features outlined previously plus SD and USB slots CD
player with CD track information 2xlOW high quality full-range stand alone stereo speakers and full function

remote control

The BT 200 is Bluetooth handset for cell phone use with outdoor vehicles such as ATVs tractors and other

heavy equipment

Cobras new high intensity line of LED flashlights feature long lasting super bright light with up to 100000

hours of LED life Available in flip LED18 or light bar LED6O these high intensity lights are perfect

solution for work benches truck cabs or boat decks



The CM 300-004 is fixed mount VHF radio antenna The CM 330-001 is handheld remote speaker

microphone The CM 140-002 is 12 volt car or truck adapter for the MR F300 BT

Advanced Universal Road Alert AURA provides database of photo-enforcement locations and driving

hazards in the United States Canada and Europe with daily upgrades available 24 hours/day days/week

The S2000 Ventura is portable navigation device for motor homes and RVs with camping data for over 8600

campsites across Europe

The 100 golf range finder provides enhanced course information with GPS enabled location and distance

information

The LYNX database combines GPS and GPRS technologies and enables users to share locations of mobile and

fixed safety camera positions

Sales Distribution

Demand for consumer electronics products is somewhat seasonal and varies according to channel of distribution

Historically sales in the last half of the year are significantly greater than in the first half reflecting increasing

purchases by retailers for various promotional activities that begin mainly in the third quarter and culminate with

the holiday selling season Also because mass retail accounts make up an increasing portion of the Companys

business orders in the fourth quarter are generally stronger than orders in the third quarter In 2009 the

Company expects to continue developing new customers in the marine/outdoor channel that may over time

reduce the seasonality as sales in the marine/outdoor channel tend to peak in the first and second quarters

Suppliers

One of the Companys fundamental strengths is its product sourcing ability Substantially all of the Companys

products are manufactured to its specifications and engineering designs by number of suppliers primarily in

China Hong Kong and South Korea The Company maintains control over the design and production quality of

its products through its wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong which seeks out new suppliers monitors

technological changes performs source inspection of key suppliers provides selected engineering services and

expedites shipments from suppliers

Over period of years the Company has developed network of suppliers for its products To maintain

flexibility in product sourcing all of the Companys contracts with its suppliers can be terminated by the

Company at will While it is the Companys goal to maintain strong relationships with its current suppliers

management believes that if necessary alternate suppliers could be found The extent to which change in

supplier would have an adverse effect on the Companys business depends upon the timing of the change the

product or products that the supplier produces for the Company and the volume of that production The Company

also maintains insurance coverage that would under certain limited circumstances reimburse the Company for

lost profits resulting from suppliers inability to fulfill its commitments to the Company The Company

historically has negotiated substantially all of its purchases in U.S dollars and in the case of PPL frequently

uses forward contracts to purchase dollars at fixed exchange rate to the pound sterling The Company considers

opportunities to make purchases in other currencies such as euros to the extent that doing so would be

advantageous in light of currency fluctuations involving the U.S dollar and other currencies Research and

product development expenditures as well as non-capitalized engineering costs are expensed as incurred and

amounted to $2.2 million in 2008 $2.2 million in 2007 and $1.9 million in 2006

Patents and Intellectual Property

Patents and other intellectual property can be important marketing and merchandising tools across broad range

of products but particularly for the Companys newer products such as the AURA and Bluetooth products

Whenever the Company develops unique technology patents are applied for to preserve exclusivity



The Companys two-way radios detectors Citizens Band radios HighGearTM accessories GPS receivers marine

products and mobile navigation devices are marketed under the Cobra brand name The Cobra trademark is

registered in the United States most European countries as well as other jurisdictions The Company believes the

Cobra trademark which is indefinitely renewable is significant factor in the successful marketing of its

products

Personal navigation devices GPS locators and other products designed and marketed by PPL are marketed in the

United Kingdom and Europe under the Snooper trade name The Snooper trademark is registered in the United

Kingdom and Europe and is significant factor to successful marketing of PPL products in the United Kingdom
and Europe

Competition

Major competitors in the Cobra business segment are Motorola Midland and Uniden two-way radios Whistler

and EscortfBeltronics detection Uniden Midland and Radio Shack Citizens Band radios and Icom Umden
and Standard Radio marine products

Competitors in the PPL segment include Garmin Tom Tom and Navman for personal navigation devices and

Road Angel for GPS locators

Employees

As of December 31 2008 the Company employed 132 persons in the U.S and 42 persons in its international

operations None of the Companys employees are member of union In January 2009 the Company reduced

its U.S workforce by 10% and eliminated 13 positions and an additional positions were eliminated from

International operations

Information by Segment and Geographic Area

The consolidated entity consists of Cobra Electronics Corporation and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong Ireland and

United Kingdom With the acquisition of Performance Products Limited in 2006 the Company segregates and

reports its operating results into the Cobra Consumer Electronics Cobra business segment which sells under

the COBRA brand name and Performance Products Limited PPL business segment which sells under the

SNOOPER brand name The Cobra segment is comprised of Cobra Electronics Corporation Cobra Electronics

HK Limited CHK and Cobra Electronics Europe Limited CEEL

Longlived assets located outside of the United States totaled $8.1 million at December 31 2008 International

sales primarily in Canada and Europe including those of PPL were $35.1 million $34.5 million and $20.6

million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively For additional financial information about business segment and

geographic areas see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K

Cobra Segment

Principal products marketed under the Cobra tradename include

Two-way radios

Radar detectors

Citizens Band radios

Power Inverter and HighGear accessories



Marine VHF radios and chartplotters

NAV ONETM mobile navigation devices

AURA photo-enforcement database

In the United States Cobra competes primarily with various manufacturers and distributors of consumer

electronics products principally on the basis of product features and price and expects the market for its

products to remain highly competitive Cobra also markets its products in over 70 countries through distributors

Cobras products are distributed through strong well-established network of nearly 300 retailers and

distributors located primarily in the United States representing nearly 40000 storefronts where Cobra products

can be purchased Approximately 70 percent of the Companys sales are made directly to retailers such as mass

marketers consumer electronics specialty stores large department store chains warehouse clubs office supply

chains television home-shopping retailers direct-response merchandisers home centers and specialty stores

Most of the remaining sales are through two-step wholesale distributors that carry Cobra products to fill orders

for travel centers truck stops small department stores and appliance dealers duty-free shops on cruise lines and

for export Cobras primary sales force is composed of independent sales representatives who work on straight

commission basis The sales representatives do not sell competing products of other companies

In both Canada and Europe as well as elsewhere throughout the world the Company utilizes distributors which

sell primarily to retailers Cobras return policies and payment terms are similar to those of other companies

serving the consumer electronics market Cobra products generally must be shipped within short time after an

order is received and as result order backlog is not significant

Customers which exceeded 10 percent of consolidated net sales in any one year are as follows in 2008 sales to

Wal-Mart were 11.2 percent in 2007 sales to Wal-Mart were 14.7 percent and in 2006 sales to Wal-Mart were

17.0 percent and sales to QVC were 10.3 percent

Two- Way Radios

In 1997 Cobra entered the two-way radio market and in the fall of 1998 began selling its new microTALK line

In 1999 the Company launched its European line of microTALK PMR radios in the United Kingdom France

Spain Germany Sweden and Finland and now holds leading share in the European market The Company

began selling its microTALK FRS radios to the Canadian market in 2000 and introduced GMRS radios in 2004

and currently holds the number one share in this market Cobra has attained leading market position in the

domestic GMRS two-way radio market Although this market has matured and continued sales declines are

expected the Company expects to maintain leading market position

Cobra introduced the PR 190/270/4200 and the LI 5600/6700/7200 models in 2008 The PR 190 and 270 are

two-way radios with 22 channels rechargeable batteries wall charger and LCD display The PR 190 has up to

10 mile range
and the PR 270 has range up to 14 miles The PR 4200 is two-way radio with 22 channels

rechargeable batteries wall charger LCD display 10 channel NOAA radio and range up to 18 miles The LI

5600 6700 and 7200 expand the line of extended range two-way radios and feature 22 channels lithium ion

battery pack and 10 channel NOAA radio The LI 5600 has range of up to 20 miles the LI 6700 has range

of up to 22 miles and the LI 7200 range of up to 27 miles

The two-way product line for 2009 includes smaller eco-friendly packaging
and all products are lead free in

accordance with RoHS standards The restyled CXR models CXR 700/800/900/920 CAMO for 2009 feature

ultra compact lithium ion battery power high capacity radios with new faceplates and new button cluster

layouts



Detection

Cobra is the number one brand in the domestic market for integrated radar/laser detectors Cobra commands the

number one market share by offering innovative products with the latest technology The Company has been
leader in applying laser detection technology including introducing the industrys first laser-signal detector and
the industrys first integrated radar/laser detector with 360 degree laser detection capability The Company was
also the first to introduce to the retail channel intelligent detection systems capable of alerting drivers with

differentiated signal for each of the frequencies emitted by the Companys patented FCC-approved Safety
Alert transmitter The Companys Safety Alert Traffic Warning System is designed to help drivers avoid

potentially serious accidents with police fire EMS and public utility vehicles

Cobra announced digital radar detectors with the industrys first color LED displays improved detection range
and strong advance warning and an industry leading 12 bands in 2006 Wireless remote controlled radar/laser

detectors XRS R7 and XRS R9G with an optional GPS locator standard with the R9G model to detect red

light and speed camera locations were introduced in 2007 The discreet appearance of the GPS locator and

detection unit deters theft and improves detection range

Cobra introduced the XRS 9340/9440/9540/9640/9740/9840/9940/9950 detection models in 2008 The XRS
9340 and 9440 are 12 BandTM radar/laser detectors that feature UltraBrightTM data display and Ku VG-2 and

Spectre detection bands The XRS 9540 9640 and 9740 are 12 Band radar/laser detectors that feature

DigiView data display and Ku VG-2 and Spectre detection bands The XRS 9840 is 12-band radar/laser

detector that features the cool blue ExtremeBright DataGrafixm display POP mode radar gun Voice-Alert and
VG-2 and Spectre detection bands The XRS 9940 and XRS 9950 radar/laser detection units feature

SuperXtreme Range Superheterodyne SXRSTM Maximum Performance 12 Band Technology ExtremeBright
DataGraphix full-color display alert icons for

battery voltage and signal strength 8-point digital compass
VoiceAlertlM to annunciate signals and alerts SmartPowerTM to automatically shut off the unit when the

vehicles ignition is turned off and Safety Alert and Strobe Alert to alert the driver of approaching emergency
vehicles and road hazards The XRS 9950 has 1.5 inch color display and optional speed and red light camera

connectivity

The 2009 detection products feature the following innovations IntelliMute Pro IntelliScope IntelliView point
electronic compass 15-Band technology frequency display mode and 1.5 inch color OLED display IntelliMute

Pro provides radar-detector-detector RDD immunity Intelliscope provides detail location of photo
enforcement cameras and IntelliView provides detail location of photo enforcement cameras plus visual

warnings

Citizens Band Radios

Cobra is the leading brand in the domestic Citizens Band radio market Most of this market is for mobile Citizens

Band radios purchased primarily by professional truck drivers The remaining part of the domestic market is for

hand-held Citizens Band radios used for
sport and recreational activities

Cobra has history of being the technology leader in the Citizens Band radio market The Company was the first

Citizens Band radio marketer to combine National Weather Service receiver with mobile Citizens Band radio

enabling motorists to obtain weather and travel information broadcasts As major enhancement of this feature
the Company introduced mobile Citizens Band radio that incorporated an automatic alert feature to warn of

National Weather Service emergency advisories In 1997 the Company introduced SoundTracker technology
which dramatically improved the sound quality when the Citizens Band radio is in receiving mode and allows the

users voice to break through cluttered airwaves and to be more easily heard when transmitting The new line of

Citizens Band radios featuring an adjustable illuminated front panel_NightWatchlM technology.was
introduced in 1999 The patent pending 29 LTD BT introduced in 2008 is the first CB radio to offer Bluetooth

wireless technology to allow hands free cell phone conversations providing drivers with yet another way to

communicate safely and easily



Cobra looks for opportunities to introduce limited edition Citizens Band radios that are intended to drive

incremental sales Historically Cobra has licensed HarleyDavidson Dale Earnhardt and Dale Earnhardt Jr
trademarks for this purpose In 2007 Cobra offered limited edition chrome model and followed up with

black-chrome limited edition model in 2008

Power Inverters and High Gear Accessories

In 1997 the Company introduced its first line of power inverters which permit users to power devices requiring

120-volt AC power using the 12-volt outlet in vehicle The HighGear accessories were developed in 2000 to

market high quality Citizens Band radio microphones and external speakers

The 2006 power inverter product line allows consumers to power 120-volt AC products such as computers

video games and appliances using the 12-volt outlet in their vehicle The CPI 150 Micro Size inverter introduced

in 2006 included USB port
for an iPod Blackberry mobile phone or laptop

The 2008 product line offered USB output in all models expanded the selection of compact inverters and

increased power capacity The CPI 130/150 BK/200 CH/475/87511000/1575/2575 were introduced in 2008

The CPI 130 150 BK and 200 CH are compact power inverter models that fit inside briefcase backpack or

purse The CPI 130 fits in an automobile cigarette lighter and supplies AC and USB output to provide 130 watts

of continuous power and 260 watts of peak charging power The CPI 150 BK includes carrying case cigarette

lighter plug and an airline connector that provides 150 watts of continuous and 300 watts of peak power which is

ideal for laptop computer and cell phone The CPI 200 CH fits in cars cup holder and offers 200 watts of

continuous power and 400 watts that can power 19-inch television

The CPI 475 875 1000 1575 and 2575 are high-power inverters with USB output The CPI 475 provides 400

watts of continuous power to operate large color television and kitchen appliance The CPI 875 provides 800

watts of continuous power with 1600 watts of peak charging power The CPI 1000 provides 1000 watts of

continuous power with 2000 watts of peak charging power The CPI 1575 provides 1500 watts of continuous

power with 3000 watts of peak charging power The CPI 2575 provides 2500 watts of continuous power to

operate mini refrigerator and microwave oven and 5000 watts of peak charging power

The 2009 product line added two high power inverters the CPI 480 and CPI 880 and featured eco-friendly

packaging

Marine Products

Cobra introduced fixed and hand-held dual power marine VHF transceivers and marine chartplotters in 2003

Marine chartplotters the MC 600 series featuring embedded aerial photographs of marina and harbor entrances

3D mapping dynamic arrows to indicate direction and speed of tidal currents and arrival and off-course alarms

were introduced to marine retailers in 2006

Cobra launched new line of handheld and fixed-mount VHF radios in 2007 with Rewind Say-AgainTM digital

voice recorder that records the last 20 seconds of the transmission The handheld MR HH425 and the fixed

mount MR F8OB radios feature Rewind Say-Again 10 NOAA weather channels illuminated LCD display and

illuminated function keys The handheld radio can be used as an All-Terrain-Radio that seamlessly goes from

VHF marine radio to GMRS two-way radio The MR 1111125 waterproof 3-watt handheld VHF radio featuring

an illuminated LCD display and keypad DC charger charging jack and rechargeable batteries was introduced in

November 2007

The patent-pending and award winning MR F300 BT waterproof Bluetooth handset for your
cell phone

communications without exposing the cell phone to the elements was introduced in 2008 The BT 200 Blue

Tooth handset for outdoor vehicles was announced in 2008 with initial shipment expected in 2009



Mobile Navigation

In December 2007 Cobra reassessed the future development of mobile navigation products in North America

and concluded that the mobile navigation strategy in North America will focus on niche opportunities for

products based on the PPL platform offering lower development costs and higher profitability Results in 2008

only included winding-down activities as Cobra implemented this mobile navigation strategy

Prior to revising the mobile navigation strategy Cobras accomplishments included the introduction of the

NAV ONE at the 2004 International Consumer Electronics Show the launch in 2005 of the NAV ONE 4500

with real-time traffic updates the launch in 2006 of the NAV ONE 2500 with 3-D mapping and red light

location alerts and the launch in 2007 of the NAY ONE 5000 with 5-inch touch screen and Bluetooth

connectivity

URA Photo-Enforcement Database

In 2008 Cobra began marketing in North America database of photo-enforcement locations as feature of its

high-end radar detectors drawing on the experience of PPL and their success in the U.K and throughout Europe
Based on consumer response Cobra rolled out AURA the only verified photo-enforcement database in North

America in January 2009 In addition to providing unique feature offering for the Companys top-selling line

of radar detectors the AURA database will be marketed separately with photo-enforcement detection devices and

may be licensed to other companies

PPL Segment

Products marketed by PPL include personal navigation devices marketed under the tradename of Snooper

Truckmate Snooper Syrius Snooper Sapphire Plus Snooper Strabo and others and GPS-enabled speed camera

location detectors marketed under the tradenames of Snooper Sapphire Snooper S6-R Neo Plus and Snooper

Evolution among others 2009 marks the 30th anniversary of the Snooper brand PPL also markets database of

speed camera locations and other driving hazards such as high-accident zones under the Enigma brand in

January 2009 the Enigma database was be rebranded as the AURA database representing global speed camera

and hazards database for driver safety These personal navigation speed camera locator and database products

are marketed through consumer electronics retailers specialty retailers and directly to consumers through its

website and customer service centers Products are sold primarily in the U.K although European sales outside of

the U.K increased to 23.7 percent of net sales in 2008 from 15.5 percent in the prior year

Sales are primarily in the U.K as well as in other European countries through network of 1400 retailers and

distributors and PPL website

Personal Navigation

The Snooper Indago introduced in 2006 and the Snooper Syrius and Snooper Strabo introduced in 2007 feature

full-color LCD touchscreen two dimensional and three dimensional views built-in rechargeable battery for

cordless operation and the option to download the Enigma database The Snooper Truckmate introduced in

2008 is personal navigation device with dedicated routing within the United Kingdom and Europe for trucks

buses motor homes and other large vehicles Information available includes low bridges weight restrictions and

width limitations Entering specific vehicle information enables the device to select the most appropriate route

The 2009 product line includes the S2000 Ventura for motor homes and RVs featuring data for over 8600

campsites in Europe

The Snooper Sapphire Plus also provides the capability to download the layout of over 2000 golf courses in the

U.K and Ireland and provide the yardage to course hazards and the green for each hole The Shotsaver

introduced in 2008 offers complete golf course management tool for over 2000 golf courses in the

United Kingdom and Europe and includes distance calculations Enhanced golf course information will be

available in the S100 to be released later in 2009



The S290M is smart phone card that can be used for navigation and speed camera information The SPT 200 is

personal tracking device that uses GPS GPRS and GSM technology to monitor the location of any boat

vehicle or individual with an accuracy of 2.5 meters The SPT22O is an ultra-compact portable tracker designed

specifically for pets

Speed Camera Locators

PPL markets speed camera detection devices including the Snooper Sapphire Snooper S6-R Neo Plus and

Snooper Evolution which use GPS location technology and the Enigma database to alert drivers to upcoming

speed camera and hazard locations

Enigma Database

PPL markets proprietary Enigma database that provides drivers with advance notice of upcoming speed camera

and hazardous locations The proprietary Enigma database provides competitive advantage Unlike database

capabilities of competitors the Enigma database is updated on daily basis and makes the information available

to its subscribers 24 hours day days week The Enigma database makes new speed camera locations more

readily available to customers The Enigma database was rebranded in January 2009 as the AURA database

reflecting the Companys global strategy for speed camera detection LYNX with AURA database enabling users

to share positions of mobile and fixed safety cameras will be available in 2009

Available Information

The Companys website address is www.cobra.com The Companys annual report on Form 10-K quarterly

reports on Form 0-Q current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports filed or furnished

pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act are available free of charge through our website as soon

as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and

Exchange Commission the SEC We include our website address in this annual report on Form 10-K only as

an inactive textual reference and do not intend it to be an active lead to our website

Item 1A Risk Factors

This section identifies certain risks and uncertainties that the Company faces If the Company is unable to

appropriately address these and other circumstances that could have negative effect on its business the

Companys business may suffer Negative events may decrease revenues increase costs negatively affect

financial results and decrease financial strength thereby causing the price of the Companys stock to decline

Business financial condition or results of operation could be adversely affected by the inability to enhance

existing products or introduce new products to meet consumer preferences including timely introductions

as new consumer technologies are introduced

Management believes that the Companys future success depends upon its ability to predict and respond in

timely and effective manner to changes in the markets it serves Consequently the Company strives to introduce

distinctive new products that anticipate changing consumer demands and capitalize upon emerging technologies

If the Company fails to introduce or suffers delays in introducing new products misinterprets consumer

preferences or fails to respond to changes in the marketplace consumer demand for our products could decrease

and our brand image could suffer In addition competitors may introduce new designs or technologies

undermining our products desirability If any of the foregoing occurs our business financial condition or results

of operations could be materially harmed



Failure to maintain relationships with key customers and failure by key customers to purchase expected

quantities of our products could have an adverse effect on our business

Cobra products are distributed through network of nearly 300 retailers and distributors in the United States and

33 distributors in Europe and elsewhere around the world PPL products are sold through network of 1400
retailers and distributors in Europe The Companys success is dependent upon the ability to retain an existing

base of customers to sell the Companys products Loss of customers means loss of product placement and

consequently reduction in sales volume

Certain of the Companys customers account for large portion of the Companys net sales For instance in

2008 sales to Wal-Mart were 11.2 percent of net sales We anticipate that Wal-Mart will continue to account for

significant portion of our net sales in the foreseeable future Customers are not obligated by any firm long-term

purchase commitments for our products As result customers may cancel purchase commitments or reduce or

delay orders on relatively short notice The loss of sales to or material delay in orders from our key customers

could materially harm our business financial condition and results of operations

If the Company is unable to obtain sufficient amounts of high quality products on timely basis customer

needs may not be met and reduced sales may result

Substantially all products are manufactured by third party manufacturers located outside of the United States

primarily in China Hong Kong and South Korea The ability to meet customers needs depends on the ability to

maintain an uninterrupted supply of products from multiple third party manufacturers While the Company
purchases most products from multiple third party manufacturers business financial condition or results of

operations could be adversely affected if any of the principal third party manufacturers experience production

problems lack of capacity or transportation disruptions In addition certain of our third party manufacturers

serve other customers number of which have greater production requirements than we do As result third

party manufacturers could determine to prioritize production capacity for other customers or reduce or eliminate

services for us on short notice The extent to which changes in third party manufacturers would have an adverse

effect on the Companys business depends upon the timing of the changes the product or products that the third

party manufacturers produce and the volume of production

Dependence on third party manufacturers for products subjects the Company to the risk of supplier failure and

customer dissatisfaction with the quality or performance of such products Quality or performance failures by

third party manufacturers or changes in their financial or business condition which affect their production could

disrupt the ability to supply quality products to customers and thereby materially harm our business financial

condition and results of operations

Shortages of components and materials may disrupt the supply of products

The inability of third party manufacturers to obtain sufficient quantities of components and other materials used

in our products could disrupt the supply of products or increase costs Materials and components for some

products may not be available in sufficient quantities to satisfy sales requirements as result of supply shortages

Supply interruptions relating to products could result in lost sales opportunities which may harm our business

financial condition and results of operation

Reliance on retailers and third party distributors to sell our products

Cobra products are sold through network of nearly 300 retailers and distributors in the United States and 33

distributors in Europe and elsewhere around the world PPL products are sold through network of 1400
retailers and distributors in Europe Certain distributors market competitors products The loss termination or

failure of one or more of the distributors to effectively promote our products could affect the Companys ability
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to bring its products to market and could reduce sales Changes in the financial or business condition of these

distributors and retailers could also affect the level of their purchases of our products which could materially

harm our business financial condition and results of operation

The Company competes with large number of companies in the consumer electronics business and if we

are unable to compete effectively our business financial condition and results of operations may be

materially affected

The Company encounters strong competition from number of companies in the consumer electronics business

Some of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories larger customer bases greater

brand recognition and significantly greater financial resources than we do Competition is based principally on

the introduction of new products and pricing Competitors may have greater resources and operating and

financial flexibility to introduce new products and withstand changes in pricing To compete for sales the

Company may have to lower its prices or increase its investment in development of new technologies which

could reduce gross margin and adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations There

is no assurance that the Company will continue to compete effectively against existing and new competitors that

may enter our markets

The current downturn in global economic and market conditions could negatively impact our business

financial condition and results of operations

The consumer electronics products sold by the Company are generally discretionary purchases for consumers

Consumer spending is affected by many factors including consumer confidence levels interest rates tax rates

employment levels and prospects and other general economic conditions The current economic slowdown and

recession in the United States and worldwide economies is likely to decrease the demand for products and

adversely affect sales Since economic and market conditions vary within the Companys business segments the

Companys future performance by business segment will accordingly vary In addition deteriorating or weak

economic conditions or the forecast or perception of the same may trigger changes in inventory levels at our

retail customers including reduction in product offerings and out of stock situations which may adversely

affect our results of operations Also the cash surrender value of life insurance policies owned by the Company

for the purpose of recovering the costs of deferred compensation programs for several current and former officers

of the Company is affected by the market value of the underlying investments Adverse market conditions may

result in decline in the cash surrender value of these life insurance policies which would result in non-cash

expense that reduces our net income

International markets expose us to political and economic risks in foreign countries as well as to risks

relating to currency values and importJexport policies

Substantially all of our products are manufactured to our specifications and engineering designs by suppliers

located primarily in China Hong Kong and South Korea In addition international sales primarily in Canada and

Europe represent significant portion of our total sales International activities pose risks not faced by

companies that limit themselves to the United States market These risks include

changes in foreign currency exchange rates

exchange controls

changes in specific countrys or regions political or economic conditions

issues affecting health and safety in specific countries or regions

tariffs quotas trade barriers other trade protection measures in the United States or foreign countries

and import or export licensing requirements

increased shipping costs disruptions in shipping or reduced availability of freight transportation
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difficulties in enforcing remedies in foreign jurisdictions and compliance with applicable foreign laws

potentially negative consequences from changes in tax laws and

different regulatory structures and unexpected changes in regulatory requirements

Revenues and purchases are predominately in U.S dollars however portion of revenue is collectible in other

currencies principally euros and British pounds sterling The Company historically has negotiated substantially
all of its purchases in U.S dollars and in the case of PPL frequently uses forward contracts to purchase dollars

at fixed exchange rate to the Britishpounds sterling The Company considers opportunities to make purchases
in other currencies such as euros to the extent that doing so would be advantageous in light of

currency
fluctuations involving the U.S dollar and other currencies As sales expand in international markets customers

may increasingly make payments in currencies other than U.S dollars which could have considerable affect on

margins The Company hedges foreign currency fluctuations however it may not be able to fully hedge against
the risks of such fluctuations and future exchange rate fluctuations could materially affect our operating results

The Company is subject to various governmental regulations that could adversely affect the business

The Companys operations are subject to various federal state and local regulatory requirements including those

relating to environmental health and safety matters The Company could become subject to liabilities as result

of failure to comply with applicable laws and could incur substantial costs to comply with existing or new
more stringent regulations In addition the use of the Companys products is also governed by variety of

federal state and local regulations including the regulations of the Federal Communications Commission and

changes in such regulations may affect demand for our products

The Company is subject to governmental regulation in the countries in which it operates

The Companys business is subject to governmental regulations in the countries in which it operates From time

to time such governments may consider proposed legislation relating to the regulation of products that we or our

subsidiaries sell The loss of sales as result of any such regulations and any similar legislation could materially
harm our business financial condition and results of operations

Mobile navigation devices and other GPS-enabled products depend upon network of satellites

maintained by the United States Department of Defense If these satellites become inoperable or the

policies of the United States regarding civilian use of the GPS system change there would be material

effect on our business

The global positioning system capabilities of our products function through network of satellites launched
operated and maintained by the United States Department of Defense Should the satellites or underlying support

systems become inoperable or if the United States government were to choose to degrade the quality of signals
available to civilians GPS products will not function as designed and there would likely be an adverse effect on
demand for these products Additionally the Department of Defense does not currently charge users for access to

the signals used by these devices and any move to do so could affect the economies of our business

If we are unable to enforce or defend Its rights with respect to intellectual property our business may be

adversely affected

The Cobra trademark is key factor in the marketing of our products Trademark protection with respect to the

Cobra trademark in the United States could be subject to challenge in some product areas In addition the

Company may not be able to obtain trademark protection for the Cobra trademark in each country in which it

sells products If we are unable to use the Cobra trademark with respect to some products or in some markets our

results of operations could be adversely affected
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The Snooper trademark is well-known trademark in the United Kingdom and contributes to the success of PPL

If we are unable to use the Snooper trademark in the United Kingdom or in other areas where PPL is expanding

its business our results of operations could be adversely affected

The Company licenses patents for use in certain of our products particularly navigation products
If the patents

are challenged or third parties claim that products infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others the

Company may incur significant costs to defend its intellectual property rights and may not ultimately be

successful If any of our products are determined to have infringed upon the intellectual property rights of others

the Company may face substantial damages as well as injunctive relief which could effectively block our ability

to market these products in the United States and abroad Such judgment could materially harm our business

financial condition and results of operations

We may be required to record impairment charges for intangible assets in future periods

The carrying value of intangible assets totaled $11.2 million at December 31 2008 We test for impairment

whenever evidence of impairment exists Impairment charges which will reduce net income and may have

material adverse effect on financial results will be recorded when warranted by our financial performance or

market conditions

Our profitability and financial condition depends on our ability to collect on amounts due from customers

We have significant accounts receivable due from customers It is not uncommon for customer to suspend

payments of amounts due if the customer experiences operational
difficulties customer experiencing severe

operational difficulties may file for bankruptcy In these cases we may be unable to collect on that customers

outstanding accounts receivable balance The failure of our customers to pay amounts due could negatively affect

our business financial condition and results of operations

Our secured credit facility contains restrictive covenants and our failure to comply with those restrictions

could result in default which could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition

and results of operations

Our secured credit facility is our principal source of available liquidity
other than cash generated by operations

As of December 31 2008 we had $17.7 million of outstanding indebtedness under our credit facility In

February 2008 we entered into new secured credit facility which replaced our previous
credit facility Our new

credit facility contains number of significant restrictions that limit our ability to among other things do the

following

incur additional indebtedness

grant liens on assets or

merge consolidate or dispose of our assets

The secured credit facility also requires compliance with certain financial covenants breach of the covenants

contained in the credit facility could result in any outstanding indebtedness under the credit facility becoming

immediately due and payable and in our inability to borrow additional funds under the credit facility either of

which could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Our inability to secure credit that we may require in the future may negatively impact liquidity

In the current credit environment it is increasingly difficult for businesses to secure financing If we require

additional financing in the future we may be unable to secure financing or may only be able to secure financing

on terms which could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations
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Economic conditions maylimit the access to credit needed by our customers and suppliers

Our business may be adversely impacted by the availability of credit and consumer spending rates Recent

deterioration of national and global economic conditions and its impact on the credit environment could

materially adversely impact our business financial condition or results of operations The financial stability of

our customers or suppliers may be compromised which could result in additional bad debts for the Company or

non-performance by suppliers Uncertainty about current global economic conditions and the higher costs or

unavailability of credit may cause consumers of our products to postpone spending in response to tighter credit

negative financial news and/or declines in income or asset values In some cases our customers or suppliers may
be unable to stay in business This could have material adverse impact on the demand for our products and on

our business financial condition and operating results

Sales of our products are subject to seasonal variations and as result our quarterly operating results

may fluctuate and may not be reliable indicator of our future performance

Because mass retail accounts make up an increasing portion of the business sales orders in the fourth quarter

frequently are stronger than orders in first second and third quarters Consequently you should not rely on our

results of operations during any particular quarter as an indication of our results for full
year or any other

quarter In addition if investors inaccurately estimate our results of operations in one or more future quarters and

our operating results fall below expectations our stock price may decline

The price of our common stock may be subject to sudden decreases due to the inherent volatility of

operating and competitive factors

The market price of the Companys common stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in

response to various factors We have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations with respect to the

Companys common stock The market price of our common stock is dependent upon but not limited to

press releases or publicity relating to the Company or its competitors or relating to trends in the

consumer electronics industry

changes in the legal or regulatory environment affecting our business

changes in expectations as to future financial performance including financial estimates by securities

analysts and investors

the operating and stock performance of other companies that investors may deem comparable

developments affecting us customers or suppliers and

general domestic or international economic market and political conditions

These factors may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock regardless of our actual operating

performance and could prevent our stockholders from selling their common stock at or above the price at which

they purchased it In addition the stock markets from time to time experience extreme price and volume

fluctuations that may be unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies In the past

some stockholders have brought securities class action lawsuits against companies following periods of volatility

in the market price of their securities We may in the future be the target of similar litigation Securities litigation

regardless of whether we are ultimately successful could result in substantial costs and divert managements
attention and resources

The loss of key members of our management and technical team may adversely affect our business

The Companys success depends on the performance of key management sales technical and other critical

personnel and our ability to continue to attract motivate and retain management and highly qualified key
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personnel
Failure to do so could disrupt our operations adversely affect customer relationships and impair the

ability to successfully implement and complete Company initiatives The loss of any services of any key

management or technical personnel
could make it more difficult to successfully pursue business goals In

addition the Company may not be as successful as its competitors at recruiting assimilating and retaining key

personnel

Our performance depends on favorable relations with our employees and our ability to attract and retain

them Any deterioration of those relations increase in labor costs or inability to attract and retain

employees could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Any significant deterioration in employee relations increases in labor costs or shortages of labor at any facility

could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations As of

December 31 2008 none of our employees were covered by collective bargaining agreements slowdown or

work stoppage at one facility that lasts for significant period of time could cause lost sales and increased costs

and could adversely affect the Companys ability to meet customers needs

Business could be adversely affected by disruption to our Chicago Illinois and Runcorn UK facilities

Our Chicago Illinois facility accounts for 80 percent
of the total space

utilized by the Company or 91 percent of

the space
utilized by the Cobra segment The Runcorn UK facility accounts for 12 percent

of the total space or

100 percent
of the space

utilized by the PPL segment Therefore any disruption to our operations at either of

these facilities could adversely impact our performance and impair our ability to deliver products
and services to

customers on timely basis Operations at the Chicago Illinois and Runcorn United Kingdom facilities could be

disrupted in the event of

damage to or inoperability of its warehouse

hardware or software error failure or crash

power or telecommunications failure or

fire flood or other natural disaster

Any disruption could damage the Companys reputation and cause customers to cease purchasing products from

the Company The Company could be subject to claims or litigation with respect to these losses The Companys

property and business interruption insurance may not adequately compensate us for all of the losses that we may

incur

Damage to or disruptions in the operations of our computer infrastructure and software systems could

harm our business financial condition and results of operations

The unavailability of any of our information management systems for any significant period of time could have

material adverse effect on our operations In particular our ability to deliver products to our customers when

needed collect receivables and manage inventory levels successfully largely depends on the efficient operation

of our computer hardware and software systems Our information management systems are potentially vulnerable

to damage or interruption from variety of sources including but not limited to computer viruses security

breaches energy blackouts natural disasters terrorism war and telecommunication failures There also may be

system or network disruptions if new or upgraded business management systems are defective or are not installed

properly Any system
failure or security breach could negatively impact our business and results of operations In

addition we may incur additional costs to remedy the damages caused by these system failures or security

breaches
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Our internal controls over financial reporting may not be considered effective which could result in

possible regulatory sanctions and decline in our stock price

Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires us to furnish annually report on our internal controls

over financial reporting The internal control report must contain an assessment by our management of the

effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting including the disclosure of any material weakness
Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31 2009 the independent auditors will be required to attest to and

report on internal controls The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires among other things that we maintain effective

disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting In order for management to

evaluate our internal controls the Company must regularly review and document its internal control processes
and procedures and test such controls Ultimately the Company or its independent auditors could conclude that

our internal control over financial reporting may not be effective if among others things

any material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting exist or

assessed deficiencies are not remediated

Due to the number of controls to be examined the complexity of the project and the subjectivity involved in

determining the effectiveness of controls we cannot be certain that in the future all of our controls will be

considered effective by management or if considered effective by our management that our auditors will agree
with such assessment

If as required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act the Company or its auditors are unable to assert that its internal

control over financial reporting is effective the Company could be subject to regulatory sanctions or lose

investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of the financial reports either of which could have an

adverse effect on the market price for the Companys common stock

The Company may be unable to successfully consolidate and integrate the operations of acquired

businesses such as PPL which mayadversely affect the Companys stock price operating results and

financial condition

The Company must consolidate and integrate the operations of acquired businesses with our business In 2006
the Company completed the acquisition of PPL consumer electronics company based in the United Kingdom
The success of any acquisition including the acquisition of PPL will depend on our ability to integrate assets

acquired and personnel in these transactions Integration efforts often take significant amount of time place

significant strain on our managerial operational and financial resources and could prove to be more difficult and

expensive than we predicted The diversion of our managements attention and any delays or difficulties

encountered in connection with any acquisitions including the acquisition of PPL and any future acquisitions

that may consummated could result in the disruption of our ongoing business or inconsistencies in standards

controls procedures and policies that could negatively affect our ability to maintain relationships with customers

suppliers employees and others with whom the Company has business dealings
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The Companys office and warehouse facilities in the United States Hong Kong and Europe are as follows

Owned or

Segment Location Leased Utilization

Cobra Chicago Illinois Owned Office and warehouse space

Cobra .. Kowloon Hong Kong Leased Office space

Cobra Dublin Ireland Leased Office Space

Cobra Gent Belgium Leased Warehouse space

PPL Runcorn United Kingdom Leased Office and warehouse space

Item Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to various unresolved legal actions and proceedings which arise in the normal course of

its business None of these actions is expected to have material adverse effect on the Companys financial

condition or results of operations

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter of 2008

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of the Company are as follows

Name Age and
Has Held Present

Present Position
Position Since

James Bazet 61
Jan 1998

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer Also director

Anthçny Mirabelli 67
Feb 1997

Senior Vice President Marketing and Sales

Michael Smith 55
Jan 2001

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Gerald Laures 61
Mar 1994

Vice President-Finance and Corporate Secretary
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PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

The Companys common stock trades on The NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol COBR As of March 10
2009 the Company had approximately 535 shareholders of record and approximately 1900 shareholders for

whom securities firms acted as nominees The Companys common stock is the only class of equity securities

outstanding

STOCK PRICE RANGE AND DIVIDENDS

2008 2007 2006

Dividends Dividends Dividends

Quarter High Low Declared High Low Declared High Low Declared

First $5.42 $3.32 $0.16 $10.95 $8.75 $0.16 $14.00 $10.06 $0.16

Second 3.69 2.51 10.72 9.16 12.49 9.04

Third 3.19 1.94 10.06 6.14 11.45 8.04

Fourth 2.63 0.75 6.75 4.11 10.42 8.02

Year 5.42 0.75 0.16 10.95 4.11 0.16 14.00 8.02 0.16

Note Stock price data compiled from The NASDAQ Stock Market Monthly Summary of Activity Reports

Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth the Companys financial data for each of the past five
years

You should read this

information together with the consolidated financial statements and notes to those statements included in Item

of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the information set forth under the caption Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Year Ended December31 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in thousands except per share amounts

Operating Data

Net sales $124745 $155935 $153695 $133084 $122877

Net loss earnings 18839 4422 1630 11984 2381
Net loss earnings per share

Basic 2.91 0.68 0.25 1.86 0.37

Diluted 2.91 0.68 0.25 1.81 0.36

Dividendspershare 0.16 0.16 0.16

As of December 31

Total assets 78998 $114318 $116758 92922 82494
Long-term debt 16301 18745 15614

Reflects the acquisition of Performance Products Limited PPL on October 20 2006

18



Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following managements discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Companys audited

Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K and any forward-

looking statements contained herein or elsewhere in this Form 10-K involve risks uncertainties and assumptions

Actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as result of

various factors including but not limited to those presented under Risk Factors in Item 1A in this Form 10-K

and elsewhere herein

Executive Summary

In 2008 the Company reported $31.2 million decrease in net sales to $124.7 million from $155.9 million in

2007 The decrease in net sales was largely attributable to the following factors impacting the Cobra business

segment

Mobile navigationlGPS product sales declined as result of change in 2007 in the Companys mass

market mobile navigation strategy in North America discussed below

Domestic detection two-way radio and Citizens Band radio sales all declined because of the effect of

the deepening recession on store traffic and consumer spending during the fourth quarter holiday

selling period

Domestic detection and two-way radio sales were negatively impacted as result of competitive

pressures

The Companys gross margin increased to 30.6 percent in 2008 from 20.1 percent in 2007 because of several

factors

In the fourth quarter
of 2007 the Company recorded charge of $7.7 million resulting from change

in its mass market mobile navigation strategy
in North America Of this total charge $7.5 million was

recorded to cost of sales which reduced the gross margin by 4.9 points As part of this change in

strategy all future development of mass marketed mobile navigation products ceased with future

efforts limited to unique mobile navigation products sold into niche markets with specialized and

focused distribution When such products are launched lower cost sourcing arrangements utilizing the

PPL platform or that of other qualified vendors will be employed The $7.7 million charge consisted of

costs related to the impairment of certain intellectual property the write down of certain mobile

navigation inventory related parts and other assets to estimated net realizable value the disposition of

future product returns by means other than returning them to vendors for credit against new products

and severance

Cobra segment gross margin was favorably impacted by higher gross margins for domestic detection

two-way radio and Citizens Band radio products due to the launch of new products and improved

inventory management

PPL gross margin increased in 2008 by 11.2 points and the sales of this segment accounted for

higher percentage of consolidated sales than in the prior year

The Companys selling general and administrative expense
decreased $5.5 million in 2008 primarily in the

Cobra segment because of declines in fixed sales marketing and general administrative expenses and lower

variable selling expense as result of the decline in net sales In connection with year-end impairment review

resulting from decline in the Companys stock price as financial markets declined the Company recorded

$20.1 million impairment charge in the fourth quarter
of 2008 to write-off all the goodwill associated with the

PPL acquisition

Interest expense decreased by $658000 in 2008 as result of lower average interest bearing debt and lower

weighted average interest rate Other expense amounted to $1.1 million in 2008 compared to other income of

$1.1 million in 2007 The other expense in 2008 was driven by $1.6 million loss on the cash surrender value of
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life insurance owned by the Company for the purpose of recovering the costs of deferred compensation

programs for several current and former officers The loss was generated as the investment vehicles in which the

cash was invested declined in value in line with the overall fmancial markets

The Company reported net loss of $18.8 million or $2.91 per share in 2008 compared to net loss of $4.4

million or $0.68 per share for 2007 The income tax provision for 2008 reflected 3.3 percent effective tax rate

compared to an effective tax rate of 50.0 percent for the 2007 income tax benefit The effective tax expense rate

for 2008 was low due to the non- deductibility of the cash surrender value loss in the United States and the

non-deductibility of the goodwill impairment charge in the United Kingdom Beginning with 2009 the

Companys intent is to repatriate substantially all of CEEL future earnings for use for other corporate purposes

which will increase the Companys effective tax on these earnings to reflect the higher U.S rate

Outlook

The Companys business is subject to economic cycles and retail industry conditions both domestically and

internationally Purchases of discretionary items such as the Companys Citizens Band and two-way radios radar

detectors and other consumer electronic products tend to decline during recessionary periods particularly those in

which consumer spending is weak The economic environment in the U.S Canada and Europe where substantially

all of the Companys sales occur has deteriorated over the past several months and consumer spending has been

adversely impacted as store traffic has declined at the mass merchants consumer electronics specialty stores large

department store chains warehouse clubs and travel center chains that sell the Companys products If the global

macroeconomic environment continues to be weak or deteriorates further there will likely be negative effect on

the Companys revenues and earnings for both of its reporting segments for fiscal year 2009 and potentially

continuing into fiscal year 2010 However to help mitigate the negative effects of this weakening global

macroeconomic environment the Company has taken certain steps including reducing its workforce by more than

ten percent and eliminating certain selling general and administrative expenses amounting to more than $1.2

million in annualized savings and placing on hold other expenses which the Company is prepared to trim or

eliminate if
necessary Also the Company will focus on maximizing cash flows in its core Cobra product lines and

at the same time launch key new PPL products The Company expects that these actions will enable it to be

profitable in 2009 with revenues at approximately the same levels as those in 2008

EBITDA

The Companys EBITDA showed substantial improvement in 2008 as improved gross margins and lower

selling general and administrative expenses offset substantially increased non-cash charges The following table

shows the reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and EBITDA As Defined

Year Ended December31

2008 2007

in thousands

Net loss income $18839 $4422
Depreciation and amortization 5296 7925

Interest expense 997 1655

Income tax provision 598 4396
Minority interest 11 19

EBITDA 11937 781

Stock option expense 253 223

CSV loss 1558 17
Deferred revenue database 426

Impairment 20350 3031

Other non-cash items 300 3082

EBITDA As Defined 10350 7100
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EBITDA represents earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA As Defined

represents
EBITDA plus the applicable adjustments required to agree with the EBITDA measurement for

compliance with the financial covenants of the Companys lenders The Company believes EBITDA is useful

performance indicator and is frequently used by management securities analysts and investors to judge operating

performance between time periods and among other companies The Company uses EBITDA As Defined to

assess operating performance and ensure compliance with financial covenants

EBITDA and EBITDA As Defined are Non-GAAP performance indicators that should be used in conjunction

with GAAP performance measurements such as net sales operating profit and net income to evaluate the

Companys operating performance EBITDA and EBITDA As Defined are not alternatives to net income or cash

flow from operations determined in accordance with GAAP Furthermore EBITDA and EBITDA As Defined

may not be comparable to the calculation of similarly titled measures reported by other companies

Results of Operations2008 Compared to 2007

The following table contains sales and pre-tax profit loss after eliminating intercompany accounts by business

segment for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 vs 2007

2008 2007 Increase Decrease

in thousands

Pre-tax Pre-tax Pre-tax

Net Profit Net Profit Net Profit

Business Segment
Sales Loss Sales Loss Sales Loss

Cobra $110846 559 $141180 $9583 $30334 9024

PPL 13899 17671 14755 784 856 18455

Total Company $124745 $l8230 $155935 $8799 $31190 9431

Cobra Business Segment

Net sales of the Cobra segment decreased in 2008 by $30.3 million or 21.5 percent to $110.8 million from

$141.2 million in 2007 $9.2 million of the decrease was because of lower mobile navigation/GPS product
net

sales due to the Companys change in 2007 in its North American mobile navigation strategy as reflected below

Mobile

Navigationl Other

GPS Products Products Total

Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales

in thousands

2008
122 $110724 $110846

2007
9367 131813 141180

Increase decrease
$9245 21089 30334

Also contributing to the decrease in the Cobra segment were lower sales of domestic detection two-way radio

and Citizens Band radios which declined 19.3 percent 33.9 percent and 15.5 percent respectively
In part

these

declines reflected the impact of the deepening
recession on store traffic and consumer spending during the fourth

quarter holiday selling period and in the case of Citizens Band radios the effect of historically high fuel prices

early in the year Additionally detection and two-way radio sales were negatively impacted as result of

competitive pressures especially for shelf space for these products at several mass retailers Two-way radio sales

were also adversely affected by the declining emphasis on the category by retailers Partially offsetting these

declines were higher sales of power inverters as result of expanded distribution and increased promotional

activity at travel centers and two-way radios in Canada because of increased placement which helped continue

Cobras leading position in this market
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Cobras gross profit increased to $31.0 million in 2008 from $25.4 million in 2007 while the gross margin was

28.0 percent and 18.0 percent respectively The higher gross profit and margin was due mainly to an $8.2 million

decrease in the gross loss from mobile navigationlGPS products as reflected below

Mobile

Navigationl Other

GPS Products Products Total

Gross Profit Gross Profit Gross Profit

Loss Loss Loss

In thousands

2008 gross profit loss 164 $31161 $30997
2007 gross profit loss 8453 33899 25446

Increase decrease 8289 $2738 5551

2008 gross margin -134.4% 28.1% 28.0%

2007
gross margin -90.2% 25.7% 18.0%

Expenses for 2008 and 2007 were those estimated to be directly related to the mobile navigation/GPS

products and would not have been incurred absent sale of these products

The lower gross loss in 2008 for mobile navigation/GPS was primarily due to $7.5 million charged in 2007 to

cost of sales for the change in the Companys North American mobile navigation strategy as previously

discussed The $7.5 million cost of sales charge which reduced the Cobra segment gross margin by 5.4 points is

summarized below in thousands

Product warranty and liquidation reserves $3008
Product software impairment 2622
Tooling packaging and parts write-downs 1243

Inventory write-downs 676

Charged to cost of sales $7549

Excluding the mobile navigation/GPS gross losses in 2008 and 2007 Cobras gross margin would have increased

to 28.1 percent in 2008 from 25.7 percent in 2007 Responsible for the increase were improved gross margins for

all of Cobras core domestic products principally because of the sale of new higher margin products as well as

improved inventory management which reduced obsolete inventory and airfreight expenses

Selling general and administrative expense for the Cobra segment decreased $4.8 million or 14.3 percent to

$29.0 million in 2008 from $33.8 million in 2007 and as percentage of net sales were 26.2 percent and 24.0

percent respectively Almost half of the decrease was due to lower variable selling cost because of the decline in

sales The remainder of the decrease was due to lower professional fees especially accounting and tax fees which

were higher in 2007 because of the PPL acquisition and compliance with new accounting rules as well as legal

fees that declined because of the elimination of mobile navigation patent work and lower fixed sales and

marketing cost due to headcount reductions and lower travel Operating costs at CEEL also declined because of

reduction in headcount and the favorable impact of weaker euro

Included in the Cobra segment 2008 pre-tax loss was interest expense of $997000 which was decrease of

$622000 from 2007 and other expense of $1.6 million which was an increase of $2.0 million from 2007 Interest

expense decreased as result of lower average interest bearing debt and lower interest rates Other expense
increased because of $1.6 million loss on the cash surrender value of life insurance which is owned by the

Company for the purpose of recovering the costs of deferred compensation programs for several current and

former officers The loss was generated as the investment vehicles in which the cash was invested declined in

value in line with the overall financial markets
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Performance Products Limited Business Segment

PPL net sales decreased in 2008 by $856000 or 5.8 percent to $13.9 million from $14.8 million in 2007

Impacting net sales in 2008 was the weakening of the pound sterling which reduced net sales in 2008 by

approximately $762000 In addition sales in the third and fourth quarters were adversely impacted by the

significant decline in the UK economy First-time sales of SD cards for smartphones
offset lower sales of

GPS-enabled speed camera location detectors that declined because of production problem for one popular

model during the first half of 2008 which has since been overcome Sales of personal navigation products

increased due to the introduction of the first dedicated portable truck satellite navigation system
for professional

drivers that uses satellite navigation technology to incorporate width height and weight limits to create truck

friendly routes

Gross profit increased $1.2 million to $7.2 million or 51.6 percent in 2008 from the $6.0 million or 40.4 percent

for the prior year The increase in gross margin was due primarily to mix impact as higher-margin sales of data

download fees and SD cards for smartphones accounted for larger portion of PPL 2008 revenue

Selling general
and administrative expenses declined in 2008 by $633000 or 10.9 percent

to $5.2 million from

$5.8 million in 2007 Expressed as percentage
of net sales selling general and administrative expenses were

37.3% for 2008 compared to 39.4% for 2007 The decrease in selling general and administrative expenses was

due mainly to the weaker British pound sterling as discussed above

The Companys annual impairment review as of October 2008 was superseded by continued degradation of the

financial markets and the Companys stock price The Companys low stock price in relation to book value per

share triggered an impairment review of the goodwill associated with the PPL acquisition as of December 31

2008 Based on the year-end reconciliation of the book value to market capitalization $20.1 million

impairment charge was recorded in the fourth quarter
of 2008

Income Taxes

The income tax provision for 2008 reflected 3.3 percent
effective tax rate for the 2008 tax expense compared to

an effective tax rate of 50.0 percent for the 2007 income tax benefit The $598000 tax expense
based on

pre-tax loss of $18.2 million was due to the non-deductibility of the cash surrender value loss in the United States

and the non-deductibility of goodwill impairment in the United Kingdom

The effective tax rate for 2007 was higher than the combined U.S statutory rate of 38.9 percent because of

minimal tax at CEEL on $1.5 million of taxable income as result of the reversal of valuation allowance

Beginning
with 2009 the Companys intent is to repatriate

CEEL future earnings for use for other corporate

purposes which will increase the Companys effective tax on these earnings to reflect the higher U.S rate

Results of Operations2007 Compared to 2006

The following table contains sales and pre-tax profit loss after eliminating intercompany accounts by business

segment for the years
ended December 31 2007 and 2006 Results for PPL in 2006 reflect only those activities

occurring subsequent to the acquisition of PPL by the Company on October 20 2006

2007 vs 2006

2007 2006 Increase Decrease

in thousands

Pre-tax Pre-tax Pre-tax

Net Profit Net Profit Net Profit

Business Segment
Sales Loss Sales Loss Sales Loss

Cobra $141180 $9583 $150974 $2503 9794 $7080

PPL 14755 784 2721 580 12034 1364

Total Company $155935 $8799 $153695 $3083 2240 $5716
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Cobra Business Segment

Net sales of the Cobra segment decreased in 2007 by $9.8 million or 6.5 percent to $141.2 million from $151.0

million in 2006 All of the decrease was because of lower mobile navigation/GPS product net sales as reflected

below

Mobile

Navigation/ Other

GPS Products Products Total

Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales

In thousands

2007 9367 $131813 $141180
2006 22479 128495 150974

Increase decrease $13112 3318 9794

Mobile navigation/GPS net sales declined $13.1 million from 2006 mainly due to significantly lower sales to one

major retailer Offsetting some of the drop in Mobile navigation/GPS net sales was an increase in net sales of

Cobras other products which grew by $3.3 million or 2.6 percent to $131.8 million from $128.5 million in

2006 significant portion of this growth was due to strong sales of detection and two-way radios in Europe as

sales of CEEL increased 71.9 percent Also contributing to the higher sales of other products were increases in

domestic sales of detectors and inverters which rose 5.7 percent and 30.1 percent respectively Detection sales

rose due to increased distribution as well as strong sales to Wal-Mart where Cobra has significant share of this

retailers overall and increasing business in this category Because of the strong domestic and European sales

global detection sales for the Cobra segment increased 17.0 percent in 2007 Inverter sales rose as result of

expanded distribution and increased promotional activity at travel centers Offsetting some of the net sales

increase in other product sales were lower North American two-way radio sales because of lesser emphasis on
the

category by retailers and continued price deflation

Cobras gross profit decreased to $25.4 million in 2007 from $28.6 million in 2006 while the gross margin was

18.0 percent and 19.0 percent respectively The lower gross profit and margin was due to $5.5 million increase

in the gross loss from mobile navigation/GPS products as reflected below

Mobile

Navigation Other

GPS Products Products Total

Gross Profit Gross Profit Gross Profit

Loss Loss Loss

in thousands

2007 gross profit loss $8453 $33899 $25446
2006 gross profit loss 2971 31620 28649

Increase decrease $5482 2279 3203

2007 gross margin -90.2% 25.7% 18.0%

2006
gross margin 13.2% 24.6% 19.0%

Expenses for 2007 and 2006 were those estimated to be directly related to the mobile navigation/GPS

product and would not have been incurred absent the sales of these products
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The higher gross loss for mobile navigationiGPS was primarily due to $7.5 million charged to cost of sales for

the change in the Companys North American mobile navigation strategy as previously discussed The $7.5

million cost of sales charge reduced Cobras gross margin by 5.4 points and is summarized below in thousands

Product warranty and liquidation reserves $3008

Product software impairment
2622

Tooling packaging and parts
write-downs 1243

Inventory write-downs
676

Charged to cost of sales
$7549

Also contributing to the
gross

loss for mobile navigation/GPS and lower segment gross margin was $3.5

million sale of NAY ONE 2100s at below cost which was done in order to absorb capitalized
software

development costs and use excess purchased parts and resulted in reduction in gross profit of approximately

$700000 or 0.5 points Cobras gross margin in 2006 was also negatively impacted by gross
loss for mobile

navigationlGPS due to the obsolescence of intellectual property upon the Companys acquisition of new

intellectual property
for future mobile navigation products and the impact of lower selling prices on first

generation handheld GPS and mobile navigation products which resulted in $2.8 million of impairment charges

for certain intellectual property and $2.3 million in charges for inventory write downs pertaining to these first

generation products Together these charges reduced the segments gross margin in 2006 by approximately 3.4

points Excluding the mobile navigation/GPS gross losses in 2007 and 2006 Cobras gross margin would have

increased to 25.7 percent from 24.6 percent in 2006 The primary drivers of the increase were improved domestic

twoway radio gross margin and higher gross margin at CEEL Two-way radio gross margin rose because of

substantial reduction in air freight as significant problems in 2006 with production delays were remedied and not

repeated in 2007 The higher gross margin at CEEL was due to the stronger euro and the favorable effect of

significantly higher sales on the absorption of overhead costs

Selling general and administrative expense
for the Cobra segment increased $2.8 million or 9.1 percent to

$33.8 million in 2007 from $31.0 million in 2006 and as percentage
of net sales were 24.0 percent and 20.5

percent respectively The increase was due to higher operating costs at CEEL including costs associated with

new product introductions and legal fees for trademark and mobile navigation patent
work Also increasing

selling general and administrative expenses were the effect of stronger euro increased professional accounting

and tax fees incurred primarily as result of the PPL acquisition and compliance with new accounting rules and

higher SFAS No 123R stock-based compensation due to the issuance of stock options during the year

Included in the Cobra segment 2007 pre-tax loss were interest expense of $1.6 million and other income of

$410000 which increased $1.1 million and $80000 respectively from 2006 The increase in interest expense

was due primarily to higher working capital requirements and debt resulting from the purchase of PPL

Performance Products Limited Business Segment

On October 20 2006 the Company acquired PPL privately-held designer and marketer of GPS-enabled speed

camera detection systems and personal navigation devices for the consumer market which is based in the United

Kingdom Accordingly the results discussed herein as compared to 2006 include only those for the period from

the date of acquisition through December 31 2006 In 2007 PPL had net sales of $14.8 million and pre-tax

segment profit of $784000 compared to net sales of $2.7 million and pre-tax segment loss of $580000 for

2006

Net sales in 2007 were lower than expected due to the failure to launch several personal navigation SKUs in

timely manner and more limited distribution than anticipated due to the competitive environment However PPL

has overcome the development and production issues that hampered its performance earlier in 2007 and in the

fourth quarter launched three new personal navigation products As result at December 31 2007 PPL had
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full complement of personal navigation and photo-enforcement location products available for sale through its

dealer network in the U.K and elsewhere in Europe Enigma data base download fees were also less than

anticipated because of the lower sales of personal navigation products the impact of more non-U.K sales since

consumers outside of the U.K do not pay for downloads of the data base for their country and deferred revenue

amortization related to the purchase price allocation Offsetting these declines were higher sales of GPS locator

products because of stronger non-U.K sales

Gross margin in 2007 was 40.4 percent compared to 47.9 percent in 2006 Negatively impacting gross margin

were the lower percentage of revenue from higher-margin personal navigation products sales lower percentage

of revenue than expected from high margin download fees and higher non-cash charges for purchase price

amortization

Selling general and administrative expense amounted to $5.8 million which was below expected levels and

reflected managements decision to reduce advertising costs

Also contributing to PPLs 2007 pre-tax profit was $679000 of other income principally gains on foreign

exchange contracts for the sale of pounds sterling and the purchase of U.S dollars Some of this was due to the

reversal of losses experienced in the fourth quarter of 2006 when PPL had $267000 of losses on foreign

exchange contracts

Income Taxes

The Companys income tax benefit of $4.4 million for 2007 reflected 50.0 percent effective tax rate compared

to 47.0 percent effective tax rate for 2006s income tax benefit of $1.4 million The effective tax rate for 2007

was higher than the combined U.S statutory rate of 38.9 percent because of minimal tax at CEEL on $1.5 million

of taxable income which was significantly greater than in 2006 as result of net operating loss carry-forward

and the reversal of valuation allowance The effective tax rate for 2006 was higher than the combined U.S

statutory rate of 36.6 percent because of the effect of the RD tax credit which increased the effective tax rate

because of the pretax loss

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On February 15 2008 the Company entered into Loan and Security Agreement the LSA with The Private

Bank and Trust Company as lender and agent and RBS Citizens N.A for $5.7 million term loan facility and

$40 million revolving credit facility Both facilities mature on October 19 2011 and replaced the previous credit

agreement

At December 31 2008 the Company had interest bearing debt outstanding of $17.7 million consisting of the

$4.5 million term loan and $13.2 million in the revolver As of December 31 2008 availability was

approximately $10.5 million under the revolving credit line based on the asset advance formulas

On October 20 2006 Cobra Electronics U.K Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company completed

the acquisition of 100 percent of the issued and outstanding share capital of PPL Under the acquisition

agreement the purchase price for the issued share capital of PPL consisted of $21.2 million paid in cash at the

closing of the transaction The former shareholders of PPL were eligible to receive additional cash consideration

of up to approximately $6.5 million based on the achievement of certain performance targets by PPL for the

twelve-month period ended March 31 2007 the first earn-out period and up to approximately $9.4 million for

the fourteen-month period ended May 31 2008 the second earn-out period No additional consideration was

paid to the former shareholders for the first earn-out period the former shareholders were eligible to recapture all

or portion of this first earn-out payment should the performance in the second earn-out period exceed the

performance targets established for the payment of the entire second earn-out Additionally the former

shareholders could have earned additional consideration if the performance of PPL exceeded certain cumulative
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targets for the combined earn-out periods The second and final earn-out period in connection with the purchase

agreement concluded on May 31 2008 The aggregate amount of the final earn-out payment which totaled $8.5

million was paid to the former shareholders on October 20 2008 and was recorded as additional purchase price

in goodwill

Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $15.0 million for the year
ended December 31 2008

compared to $1.1 million of net cash used in operating activities in 2007 Net cash flows provided by operating

activities reflected the add-back of non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization of $5.6 million the loss

on cash surrender value CSV life insurance of $1.6 million and the $20.1 million goodwill impairment as well

as decreases in receivables inventories and other assets of $8.3 million $4.3 million and $3.0 million

respectively These cash inflows were partially offset by decreases in accrued liabilities and accounts payable of

$4.4 million and $4.1 million respectively

Depreciation
and amortization included $883000 million of intangible amortization in the Cobra segment

$628000 of prepaid amortization in the Cobra segment $1.5 million of fixed asset depreciation in the Cobra

segment $769000 of product software amortization primarily for remaining Cobra segment mobile navigation

products that were sold off during 2008 and $1.1 million of PPL amortization of intangibles and other assets that

resulted from the allocation of the purchase price for PPL in accordance with SFAS 141 and $338000 of PPL

fixed asset depreciation The $1.6 million loss on the cash surrender value of life insurance owned by the

Company for the purpose
of recovering the cost of deferred compensation programs for several current and

former officers was generated as the investment vehicles in which the cash was invested declined in value in line

with the overall financial markets The decrease in accounts receivables was due mainly to the $14.5 million

decline in Cobra segment net sales in the fourth quarter of 2008 compared to the fourth quarter of 2007 The

decrease in inventories was due to reductions at both Cobra mainly because of the sell off of remaining mobile

navigation inventory and PPL mainly because of the reduction in new satellite navigation models launched in

2007 which had been inventoried to support anticipated strong sales of these new models in the first half of

2008

The decrease in accrued liabilities was due primarily to decreases in Cobra segment accrued product warranty

costs and accrued advertising and sales promotion costs The decline in accrued product warranty costs was due

to the impact of lower Cobra segment sales for the six months ending December 31 2008 compared to the six

months ended December 31 2007 since this accrual is based on sales and return rates for the six month period

as well as to the decline in product warranty costs accrued in the fourth quarter of 2007 for the disposition of

future product returns in conjunction with the Companys change in its North American mobile navigation

strategy as substantially all of the returns reserved for at December 31 2007 were received in 2008 This change

in mobile navigation strategy was also partly responsible for the decrease in accounts payable as accrued mobile

navigation royalties
declined in line with the reduction in sales Also contributing to the decrease in accounts

payable was decline in Cobra segment inventory that was in transit but not paid for at December 31 2008

compared to December 31 2007

Working capital requirements are seasonal with demand for working capital being higher later in the year as

customers begin purchasing
for the holiday selling season The Company believes that cash generated

from

operations and from borrowings under its credit agreement will be sufficient in 2009 to fund its working capital

needs The Company may draw on available credit during the year to satisfy seasonal demands and the Company

believes that its existing credit lines will be sufficient for these purposes

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $9.9 million in 2008 principally for the $8.5 million final

earn-out payment to former PPL shareholders and $1.2 million for capital expenditures For 2009 cash used for

investing activities primarily capital expenditures is anticipated to return to normalized level of approximately

$1.5 to $2.0 million and is expected to be funded from operations

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to $3.3 million primarily for bank borrowings that resulted from

$8.5 million paid to the former shareholders of PPL on October 20 2008 for the second and final earn-out period
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in connection with the purchase agreement as discussed above The Company also used cash for an annual

dividend of $1 million paid in April 2008 For 2009 the cash used for financing activities will most likely be

limited to debt reduction The decision on paying an annual dividend in 2009 has been deferred for consideration

at the Board of Directors meeting scheduled in April 2009

The Company believes that for the foreseeable future it will be able to continue to fund its operations with cash

generated from operations using existing or similar future bank credit agreements to fund its seasonal working

capital needs The Company expects to be in compliance with debt covenants during 2009

The outstanding commitments at December 31 2008 were as follows

Total Lessthanlyear lto3years 3to5 years After5years

in thousands

Capital lease 18 18

Operating leases 2172 560 668 359 585

Open purchase orders 16589 16589

Obligations under FIN 48 122 122

Deferred compensation 6584 68 966 1444 4106
Term loan 4886 1637 3249

Revolving loan 14585 496 14089

Total $44956 $19490 $18972 $1803 $4691

includes interest of $436 for the term loan and interest of $1364 for the revolving loan

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Companys significant accounting policies are discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements The application of certain of these policies requires significant judgments or historical based

estimation
process that can affect the results of operations and financial position of the Company as well as the

related footnote disclosures The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and other assumptions

that it believes are reasonable If actual amounts ultimately differ from previous estimates the revisions are

included in the Companys results of operations for the period in which the actual amounts become known

Critical accounting policies generally consist of those that are reflective of significant judgments and

uncertainties and could
potentially result in materially different results under different assumptions The

accounting policies and estimates that may have significant impact upon the operating results financial position

and footnote disclosures of the Company are as follows

Revenue Recognition Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the time of shipment except for

revenue from sales of products to certain customers whose contractual terms specify FOB destination

Revenue from sales of products to these customers is recognized at the estimated time of receipt by the

customer when title and risk of loss would pass to the customer Obligations for sales returns and

allowances and product warranties are recognized at the time of sale on an accrual basis as described in the

policies for Sales Returns Reserve and Warranty Reserve

In 2008 the Company adopted EITF 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables for revenues

associated with the ongoing access to its proprietary speed camera database that was bundled for sale

with selected products and considered single unit of accounting

Sales Returns Reserve The Company has policy that allows its customers to return product that was

returned to them by their customers The reserve reflects the sales cost of sales and gross profit impact of

expected returns and related stock adjustments as well as reduction in accounts receivable and increases in

inventory for the amount of expected returns The amount of the reserve is determined by multiplying the

sales and cost of sales by product category for the current quarter by historical return rates adjusted for any
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known changes in key variables affecting these return rates Thus judgments must be made regarding

whether current return rates will approximate anticipated return rates This reserve will vary based on the

changes in sales gross margin and historical as well as anticipated return rates from quarter to quarter

Warranty Reserve The Company generally provides one year consumer warranty for its products and

also allows its customers to return product that has been returned by their customers Consequently the

Company maintains warranty reserve which reflects historical return rates by product category multiplied

by the most recent six months of unit sales and the unit standard cost of each model The Company uses the

most recent six months of unit sales in its estimate as historical experience indicates that most returns will

occur within six months of the Companys original sale date Therefore judgments must be made based on

historical return rates and how the returned product will be disposed of either by liquidation or return to

vendors for credit on new purchases This reserve may vary
based upon the level of sales and changes in

historical return rates from quarter to quarter as well as estimated costs of disposal either liquidation prices

or the credit given by vendors

Liquidation Reserve The Company maintains liquidation reserve representing the write-down of

returned product from our customers to its net realizable value Returned inventory is either sold to various

liquidators or returned to vendors for partial credit against similar new models this decision depends upon

the estimated future demand for the models Judgments are made as to whether various models are to be

liquidated or returned to the vendor taking into consideration the liquidation prices expected to be received

and the amount of vendor credit The amount of the reserve is determined by comparing the cost of each

unit returned to the estimated amount to be realized upon each units disposition either from returning the

unit to the vendor for credit towards the cost of new similarproduct or liquidating the unit This reserve can

fluctuate significantly
from quarter to quarter depending upon quantities of returned inventory on hand and

the estimated liquidation price or vendor credit per unit

Net Realizable Value Reserve The Company maintains net realizable value reserve to write-down below

cost as necessary certain inventory not previously sold to customers where it is determined that net

realizable value is less than cost Thus judgments must be made about which slow-moving excess or

non-current models are to be included in the reserve and the estimated net realizable value of such model

i.e the per unit price that it is estimated can be received in the marketplace if the model was sold This

reserve will vary depending upon the specific models selected the estimated net realizable value for each

model and quantities of each model that are determined will be sold below cost from quarter to quarter

Advertising and Sales Promotion Accrual The advertising and sales promotion accrual reflects amounts

provided to retailers and distributors for advertising and sales promotions Customer programs generally

agreed to at the beginning of each year are mainly variable programs dependent on sales and may be

revised during the course of the year based upon customers projected sales and other factors such as new

promotional opportunities Accruals are made monthly for each customer by multiplying the customers

estimated program accrual percentage by the customers actual sales Therefore this accrual will vary

quarter to quarter depending on given quarters sales and the sales mix of customers In addition should

customer significantly exceed or fall short of its planned program sales negotiate changes to the term of the

existing programs or add new ones adjustments may need to be made to the customers estimated program

accrual percentage due to certain minimum and/or maximum sales thresholds in such customers programs

Periodic adjustments may also be necessary for unused customer funds

Deferred Compensation Obligations under the deferred compensation plans which are non-qualified

defined benefit plans and annual deferred compensation expense are determined by number of

assumptions Key assumptions in the determination of obligations under the deferred compensation plans

and annual deferred compensation expense include the discount rate and anticipated compensation for each

individual covered by the plans which in part is dependent upon the anticipated future profitability of the

Company The discount rate for 2008 and 2007 was percent The compensation increase assumptions are

based on historical experience and anticipated future performance The Company maintains life insurance

policies for certain current and former executives to provide funding for future obligations
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Software Related to Products to be Sold The Company purchases and/or incurs costs in connection with

the development of software to be used in products that the Company intends to sell mainly mobile

navigation products Such costs are capitalized and deferred as intangible assets in accordance with

Financial Accounting Standard No 86 Accounting for Costs of Computer Software to be Sold Leased or

Otherwise Marketed SFAS 86 Such costs consist of expenditures incurred after technological feasibility

of the software has been established either from working model of the product developed detail design
or the purchase of computer software that has an alternative future use Such costs which consist principally
of coding and related costs are charged to earnings based on the ratio of actual product sales during the

reporting period to expected product sales over the estimated product life cycle Software related intangible

assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for possible impairment as required by paragraph 10 of SFAS
86 and accordingly if such review indicates that the carrying amount of these assets may not be

recoverable the carrying amount is reduced to the estimated fair value

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 142
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets SFAS 142 the Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on

an annual basis or if impairment indicators exist For goodwill the evaluation requires comparison of

estimated fair value of PPL reporting unit to which the goodwill has been assigned to the sum of the

carrying value of the assets and liabilities of that unit If the sum of the carrying value of the assets and
liabilities of

reporting unit exceeds the fair value of that reporting unit the carrying value of the reporting
units goodwill is reduced to its implied fair value through an adjustment to the goodwill balance resulting
in an impairment charge

The fair values used in the SFAS 142 evaluation are estimated based upon discounted future cash flow

projections and comparisons with comparable companies as well as the Companys market capitalization
Due to the Companys low market capitalization at December 31 2008 goodwill impairment evaluation

conducted under SFAS 142 determined that the entire goodwill balance was impaired and resulted in

fourth quarter charge of $20.1 million

Intangible assets subject to amortization are evaluated for impairment pursuant to Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 144 Accounting for the lmpairnent or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS
144 which requires impairment testing whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount of an amortizable intangible asset may not be recoverable If impairment indicators exist for an

amortizable intangible asset the undiscounted future cash flows associated with the expected service

potential of the asset are compared to the carrying value of the asset If the projection of undiscounted future

cash flows is in excess of the carrying value of the intangible assets no impairment charge is recorded If

the projection of undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of the intangible asset an

impairment charge is recorded to reduce the intangible asset to its fair value

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standard No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes SFAS 109 as clarified by FASB Interpretation No 48
Accounting for Uncertainly in Income Taxes FIN 48 Under this method deferred income taxes are

determined based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax

bases of assets and liabilities given the provisions of enacted tax laws Deferred income tax provisions and
benefits are based on changes to the assets or liabilities from year to year In providing for deferred taxes

we consider tax regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates estimates of future taxable

income and available tax planning strategies If tax regulations operating results or the ability to implement
tax planning and strategies vary adjustments to the carrying value of deferred tax assets and liabilities may
be required Valuation allowances are recorded related to deferred tax assets based on the more likely than

not criteria of SFAS 109

FIN 48 requires that we recognize the financial statement benefit of tax position only after determining
that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit For tax
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positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold the amount recognized in the financial statements is

the largest benefit that has greater
than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement

with the relevant tax authority

Amounts held by foreign subsidiaries are generally subject to U.S income taxation on repatriation to the

United States The Company has not recorded deferred income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its

Irish subsidiary because of the Companys intent to indefinitely reinvest such earnings As of December 31

2008 U.S income taxes have not been provided on cumulative total of $1.8 million of such earnings It is

not practicable to determine the income tax liability that might be incurred if these earnings were to be

distributed Beginning in 2009 the Company will repatriate the future earnings of its Irish subsidiary

The above listing is not intended to be comprehensive list of all of the Companys accounting policies In most

cases the accounting treatment of particular transaction is specifically dictated by accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States Refer to Note ito the Companys consolidated financial statements

included under Item of the Annual Report on Form 10-K which is incorporated herein by reference for more

information with respect to the Companys significant accounting policies

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

SFAS No l4lRBusiness Combinations In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard No 141R revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS
141 to change how an entity accounts for the acquisition of business When effective SFAS 14 1R will

replace existing SFAS 141 in its entirety SFAS 141R carries forward the existing requirements to account for all

business combinations using the acquisition method formerly called the purchase method In general SFAS

14 lR will require acquisition-date fair value measurement of identifiable assets acquired liabilities assumed and

non-controlling interests in the acquiree SFAS 141R will eliminate the current costbased purchase method

under SFAS 141

The new measurement requirements will result in the recognition of the full amount of acquisition-date goodwill

which includes amounts attributable to non-controlling interests The acquirer will recognize in income any gain

or loss on the remeasurement to acquisition-date fair value of consideration transferred or of previously acquired

equity interests in the acquiree Neither the direct costs incurred to effect business combination nor the costs the

acquirer expects to incur under plan to restructure an acquired business will be included as part of the business

combination accounting As result those costs will be charged to expense when incurred except for debt or

equity issuance costs which will be accounted for in accordance with other generally accepted accounting

principles SFAS 14 1R will also change the accounting for contingent consideration in process research and

development contingencies and restructuring costs In addition changes in deferred tax asset valuation

allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties in business combination that occur after the measurement

period will impact income taxes under SFAS 141R

SFAS 141R amends the goodwill impairment test requirements in SFAS 142 For goodwill impairment test as

of date after the effective date of SFAS 141 the value of the reporting unit and the amount of implied

goodwill calculated in the second step of the test will be determined in accordance with the measurement and

recognition guidance on accounting for business combinations under Statement 141R This change could effect

the determination of what amount if any should be recognized as an impairment loss for goodwill recorded

before the effective date of Statement 141R This accounting will be required when Statement 141R becomes

effective January 2009 for the Company and applies to goodwill related to acquisitions accounted for

originally under SFAS 141 as well as those accounted for under SFAS 141

SFAS 141R is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or after

December 15 2008 Early adoption is prohibited The Company will adopt SFAS 141 effective January 2009

and apply its provisions prospectively
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On January 2008 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No 157 Fair Value

Measurements SFAS 157 as it relates to financial assets and liabilities In February 2008 the Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP No FAS 157-2 Effective Date of
FASB Statement No 157 which delayed the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on at

least an annual basis until January 2009 for calendar year-end entities Also in February 2008 the FASB
issued FSP No FAS 157-1 Application of FASB Statement No 157 to FASB Statement No 13 and Other

Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of L.ease Classification or
Measurement tinder Statement 13 which states that SFAS No 13 Accounting for Leases SFAS 13 and other

accounting pronouncements that address fair value measurements for purposes of lease classification or

measurement under SFAS 13 are excluded from the provisions of SFAS 157 except for assets and liabilities

related to leases assumed in business combination that are required to be measured at fair value under SFAS
No 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141 or SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations

SFAS 141R

SFAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The

provisions of this standard apply to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value

measurements and are to be applied prospectively with limited exceptions The adoption of SFAS 157 as it

relates to financial assets had no impact on the financial statements Management is currently evaluating the

potential impact of SFAS 157 as it relates to nonfinancial assets and liabilities on the financial statements

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or pay to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date This standard is now the single source
in GAAP for the definition of fair value except for the fair value of leased property as defined in SFAS 13
SFAS 157 establishes fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions

developed based on market data obtained from independent sources observable inputs and an entitys own
assumptions about market participant assumptions developed based on the best information available in the

circumstances unobservable inputs The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels which gives the

highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities Level and the

lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under SFAS 157 are

described below

Level 1Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for

identical unrestricted assets or liabilities

Level 2Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are observable for the asset or

liability either directly or indirectly including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active inputs

other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability e.g interest rates and inputs that

are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means

Level 3Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable

SFAS No 160Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements In December 2007 the FASB
issued Financial Accounting Standard No 160 Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

SFAS 160 an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 changes the accounting for and the financial statement

presentation of non-controlling equity interests in consolidated subsidiary SFAS 160 replaces the existing

minority-interest provisions of Accounting Research Bulletin ARB 51 Consolidated Financial Statements by

defining new term non-controlling interests to replace what were previously called minority interests The new
standard establishes non-controlling interests as component of the equity of consolidated entity

The underlying principle of the new standard is that both the controlling interest and the non-controlling interests

are part of the equity of single economic entity the consolidated reporting entity Classifying non-controlling
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interests as component of consolidated equity is change from the current practice of treating minority interests

as mezzanine item between liabilities and equity or as liability The change affects both the accounting and

financial reporting for non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiary SFAS 160 includes reporting

requirements intended to clearly identify and differentiate the interests of the parent and the interests of the

non-controlling owners The reporting requirements are required to be applied retrospectively

SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or after

December 15 2008 Early adoption is prohibited The Company intends to adopt SFAS 160 effective January

2009 and apply its provisions prospectively The Company will also present comparative financial statements

that reflect the retrospective application of the disclosure and presentation provisions when it applies the

requirements of SFAS 160 The Company currently does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 160 will have

material effect on its financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

ActivitiesAn Amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS 161 SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures

about an entitys derivative and hedging activities including how and why an entity uses derivative

instruments ii how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and

iiihow derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial

performance and cash flows This standard becomes effective for the Company on January 2009 Earlier

adoption of SFAS 161 and separately comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption are

encouraged As SFAS 161 only requires enhanced disclosures this standard will have no impact on the financial

statements

In April 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 142-3 Determination of the UsefulLjfe of

Intangible Assets FSPNo FAS 142-3 FSP No FAS 142-3 requires companies estimating the useful life of

recognized intangible asset to consider their historical experience in renewing or extending similararrangements

or in the absence of historical experience to consider assumptions that market participants would use about

renewal or extension as adjusted for SFAS No 142s Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets entity-specific

factors FSP No FAS 142-3 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company

is currently evaluating the potential impact of adoption of FSP No FAS 142-3 on its consolidated financial

statements However the Company does not expect the adoption of FSP No FAS 142-3 to have material effect

on its consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy

of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SFAS No 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and

the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements that are presented in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles SFAS No 162 becomes effective 60 days following

the SEC approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411 The

Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The Company does

not expect that the adoption of SFAS No 162 to have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange risks and interest rates are inherent to the

Companys operations Changes to these factors could cause fluctuations in the Companys net earnings cash

flows and the fair values of financial instruments subject to market risks The Company identifies these risks and

mitigates the financial impact with hedging and interest rate swaps

Debt incurred under revolving loan agreement with balance of $13.2 million as of December 31 2008 is

priced at an interest rate that floats with the market Therefore this debt is not significantly affected by changes

in the interest rate market 50 basis point movement in the floating debt rate would result in approximately

$66000 increase or decrease in interest expense and cash flows Also the Company has $4.5 million of debt as

of December 31 2008 with rate of interest that is fixed as result of an interest rate swap Accordingly fair

value of this fixed-rate debt can be significantly affected by changes in the interest rate market
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The Companys suppliers are located in China Hong Kong and South Korea The Company historically has

negotiated substantially all of its purchases in U.S dollars and in the case of PPL uses forward contracts to

purchase dollars at fixed exchange rate to the pound sterling The Company considers opportunities to make

purchases in other currencies such as euros to the extent that doing so would be advantageous in light of

currency fluctuations involving the U.S dollar and other currencies

In 2008 approximately 28.1 percent of the Companys sales were outside the United States principally in

Europe and Canada compared to 22.1 percent in 2007 The Company minimizes the foreign currency exchange
rate risk associated with relationships outside of the United States by conducting nearly all of its transactions in

U.S dollars except for some billings of its European business which are conducted in euros and the billings of

PPL which are primarily in pound sterling The Company does not use derivative financial or commodity
instruments for trading or speculative purposes however forward contracts are occasionally used for hedging

portion of the Companys European business euro denominated transactions and hedging dollar purchases for

PPL Please refer to Note 11 in the consolidated financial statements included under Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K which is incorporated herein by reference for further information on the Companys
financial instruments and derivatives Since the Company did not have any open foreign exchange contracts at

December 31 2008 the impact of 10 percent movement in the U.S dollar/pound sterling/euro exchange rates is

not applicable

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of that term in the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 found at Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the

Exchange Act Additional written or oral forward-looking statements may be made by the Company from time to

time in filings with the SEC press releases or otherwise Statements contained in this report that are not

historical facts are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act Forward-looking statements may include but are not limited to projections of

revenue income or loss and capital expenditures statements regarding future operations anticipated financing

needs compliance with financial covenants in loan agreements liquidity plans for acquisitions or sales of assets

or businesses plans relating to products or services assessments of materiality expansion into international

markets growth trends in the consumer electronics business technological and market developments in the

consumer electronics business the availability of new consumer electronics products and predictions of future

events as well as assumptions relating to these statements In addition when used in this report the words

anticipates believes should estimates expects intends plans and variations thereof and similar

expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties some of which cannot be predicted

or quantified based on current expectations Consequently future events and actual results could differ materially

from those set forth in contemplated by or underlying the forward-looking statements contained in this report or

in other Company filings press releases or otherwise Factors that could contribute to or cause such differences

include but are not limited to unanticipated developments in any one or more of the following areas

global economic and market conditions including continuation of or changes in the current economic

environment

ability of the Company to introduce new products to meet consumer needs including timely

introductions as new consumer technologies are introduced and customer and consumer acceptance of

these new product introductions

pressure for the Company to reduce prices for older products as newer technologies are introduced

significant competition in the consumer electronics business including introduction of new products

and changes in pricing
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factors related to foreign manufacturing sourcing and sales including foreign government regulation

trade and importation and health and safety concerns and effects of fluctuation in exchange rates

ability of the Company to maintain adequate financing to bear the interest cost of such financing and

to remain in compliance with financing covenants

impairment of intangible assets due to market conditions and/or the Companys operating results

changes in law

ability to successfully integrate acquisitions and

other risk factors which may be detailed from time to time in the Companys SEC filings

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements contained in this report

which speak only as of the date set forth on the signature page hereto The Company undertakes no obligation to

publicly release the result of any revisions to these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events

or circumstances after such date or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events
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Item FinancIal Statements and Supplementary Data

Financial statements and quarterly financial data are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as indicated

in the index on page 70

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Cobra Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cobra Electronics Corporation Delaware

corporation and Subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated

statements of operations shareholders equity and comprehensive income loss and cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended December 31 2008 These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor

were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Cobra Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Is Grant Thornton LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 17 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Cobra Electronics Corporation

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

2008 2007 2006

Net sales $124745 $155935 $153695

Cost of sales 86576 124534 123742

Gross profit
38169 31401 29953

Selling general and administrative expense
34175 39634 32620

Impairment of goodwill 20084

Loss from operations 16090 8233 2667
Interest expense 997 1655 479

Other expense income 1143 1089 63

Loss before income taxes 18230 8799 3083
Tax provision benefit 598 4396 1449

Minority interest 11 19

Net loss 18839 4422 1630

Net loss per common share

Basic 2.91 0.68 0.25

Diluted 2.91 0.68 0.25

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 6471 6458 6482

Diluted 6471 6458 6482

Dividends declared and paid per common share 0.16 0.16 0.16

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Cobra Electronics Corporation

December 31 2008 and 2007

In Thousands

2008 2007

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash 1985 1860
Receivables net of allowance for claims and doubtful accounts of $107 in 2008 and

$205 in 2007 18017 26804

Inventories primarily finished goods net 27464 33054
Deferred income taxes current 6130 8715

Prepaid assets 1705 1568

Other current assets 1497 3338

Total current assets 56798 75339

Property plant and equipment at cost

Buildings and improvements 5996 5442

Tooling and equipment 21512 21554

27508 26996

Accumulated depreciation 21962 20423
Land 230 230

Property plant and equipment net 5776 6803

Other assets

Cash surrender value of officers life insurance policies 3034 4280
Deferred income taxes non-current 2004
Goodwill 11997

Intangible assets 11218 15559

Other assets 168 340

Total other assets 16424 32176

Totalassets $78998 $114318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS cont

Cobra Electronics Corporation

December 31 2008 and 2007

In Thousands Except Share Data

2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt 1370 1240

Accounts payable
2923 7273

Accrued salaries and commissions 1124 847

Accrued advertising and sales promotion costs 1174 2093

Accrued product warranty costs
897 3440

Accrued income taxes
495 266

Other accrued liabilities 2584 4505

Total current liabilities 10567 19664

Non-current liabilities

Long-term bank debt net of current maturities 16301 18745

Deferred compensation
6516 6320

Deferred income taxes
1983 3772

Other long-term liabilities 1077 679

Total non-current liabilities
25877 29516

Total liabilities
36444 49180

Commitments and contingencies

Minority interest
24 23

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock $1 par value 1000000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock $.33 par value 12000000 shares authorized 7039100 issued and

outstanding for 2008 and 2007 2345 2345

Paid-in capital
20354 20101

Retained earnings
26305 46179

Accumulated comprehensive income 2637 327

46367 68952

Treasury stock at cost 567820 shares for 2008 and 2007 3837 3837

Total shareholders equity
42530 65115

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
$78998 $114318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cobra Electronics Corporation

Years Ended December 31 20082007 and 2006

In Thousands

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss $18839 $4422 1630
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows from operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 5296 7925 5852
Goodwill impairment 20084
Impairmentproduct software tooling and packaging 266 3031 2757
Deferred income taxes 1005 3251 2503
Loss gain on cash surrender value CSV life insurance 1558 17 12

Stock-based compensation 253 223 48
Tax benefit from stock options exercised 99 12

Minority interest 11 19
Changes in assets and liabilities

Receivables 8329 1629 2550
Inventories 4250 3720 4696
Other current assets 1162 681 1516
Other long-term assets 1888 2456 1002
Accounts payable 4142 1128 747
Accrued income taxes 157 2029 1004
Accrued liabilities 4357 843 1166
Deferred compensation 195 463 796
Deferred income 310 749 950
Other long-term liabilities 212 409 195

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 15008 1050 3356

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 1166 1558 1623
Loan receivable 3374
Intangible assets 3448
Premiums on CSV life insurance 312 295 308
Purchase of Performance Products Limited 8464 21898
Net cash used in investing activities 9942 1853 23903

Cash flows from financing activities

Bankborrowings 2314 3311 16674
Dividends paid to shareholders 1035 1031 1041
Repayment of officers note receivable 400
Transactions related to exercise of stock options net 288 534
Other 29

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 3349 2597 15499

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1592 288 222

Net increase decrease in cash 125 18 4826
Cash at beginning of year 1860 1878 6704

Cash at end of year 1985 1860 1878

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the period for

Interest 1008 1873 182
Income taxes net of refunds 314 1533 377

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME LOSS

Cobra Electronics Corporation

Years Ended December 31 20082007 and 2006

In Thousands Except Share Data

227

BalanceJanuary 2006

Comprehensive income loss
Net loss

Accumulated other comprehensive

incomeForeign currency

translation adjustment

Total comprehensive loss

Repayment of loan

Dividends to shareholders

Stock compensation expense

Purchase 65809 shares of treasury

stock

Transactions related to exercise of

10000 options net

Tax benefit from stock options

exercised

BalanceDecember 31 2006

Comprehensive
income loss

Net loss

Accumulated other comprehensive

incomeForeign currency

translation adjustment

Interest rate swap net of tax

expense of $87

Total comprehensive loss

Dividends to shareholders

Stock compensation expense

Other

Purchase 30329 shares of treasury

stock

Transactions related to exercise of

68171 options net

Tax benefit from stock options

exercised

BalanceDecember 31 2007

Comprehensive income loss
Net loss

Accumulated other comprehensive

incomeForeign currency

translation adjustment

Interest rate swap net of tax benefit

of $203

Total comprehensive loss

Dividends to shareholders

Stock compensation expense

BalanceDecember 31 2008

1031
223

48

45

99

2345 20101 46179 327

18839

2700

264

1035
253

_____
$20354 26305 $2637

Treasury
Stock Total

$3458 72252

1630

262

1368
400

1041
48

600 600

63 66

4422

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Common
Stock

$2345

Paid-in

Capital ______

19761 54255

Officers

Loan

Receivable

$400

Accumulated

Retained Comprehensive

_____ Earnings Income Loss

251

1630

262

1041
48

400

12

2345 19824 51584

4422

12

3995 69769

227

89 89

4106
1031

223

48

292 292

450 405

99

3837 65115

18839

2700

$2345

264

21803
1035

253

$3837 42530
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cobra Electronics Corporation

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

BusinessCobra designs and markets consumer electronics products which it sells primarily under the Cobra

brand name principally in the United States Canada and Europe Effective October 20 2006 the Company
acquired Performance Products Limited PPL which sells its products under the Snooper tradename

principally in the United Kingdom as well as elsewhere in Europe majority of the Companys products are

purchased from overseas suppliers primarily in China Hong Kong and South Korea The consumer electronics

market is characterized by rapidly changing technology and certain products may have limited life cycles

Management believes that it maintains
strong relationships with its current suppliers and that if necessary other

suppliers could be found The extent to which change in supplier would have an adverse effect on the

Companys business depends on the timing of the change the product or products that the supplier produces for

the Company and the volume of that production The Company also maintains insurance coverage that would in

certain limited circumstances reimburse the Company for lost profits resulting from suppliers inability to

fulfill its commitments to the Company

Principles of ConsolidationThe consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiaries Effective October 20 2006 the consolidated financial statements also include variable interest

entity VIE of which PPL is the primary beneficiary as further described in Note Variable Interest Entity

The consolidated entities are collectively referred to as the Company All significant intercompany balances

and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Translation of Foreign CurrencyAssets and liabilities of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into

U.S dollars at exchange rates in effect at year-end Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates prevailing during the year Gains or losses on foreign currency transactions and the related tax effects are

reflected in net earnings The resulting translation adjustments are included in stockholders equity as

accumulated comprehensive income

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period that are

largely based on the current business conditions including economic climate revenue growth sales returns rates

net realizable value of returned products and changes in certain working capital amounts The Company believes

its estimates and assumptions are reasonable However actual results and the timing of the recognition of such

amounts could differ from those estimates

Revenue RecognitionRevenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the time of shipment except for revenue

from sales of products to certain of those customers whose contractual terms specify FOB destination Revenue

from sales of products to these customers is recognized at the estimated time of receipt by the customer when

title and risk of loss would
pass to the customer Obligations for sales returns and allowances and product

warranties are recognized at the time of sale on an accrual basis

In 2008 the Company adopted EITF 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables for revenues

associated with the ongoing access to its proprietary speed camera database that was bundled for sale with

selected products and considered single unit of accounting

Shipping HandlingShipping and handling costs are included in cost of goods sold and the amounts invoiced

to customers relating to shipping and handling are included in net sales
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Sales TaxThe Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force Opinion 06-3EITF 06-3 How Taxes

Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented in the income

Statement on January 2007 In accordance with EITF 06-3 the Company presents the sales tax on net basis

in its consolidated financial statements

Advertising and Sales Promotion ExpensesThese costs reflect amounts provided to retailers and distributors

for advertising and sales promotions and are expensed as incurred Customer programs generally agreed to at the

beginning of each year are mainly variable programs dependent on sales and special promotional events and may

be revised during the course of the year based upon customers projected sales and other factors such as new

or changes to existing promotional programs These customer programs are accounted for as either reduction

of revenue or an operating expense in accordance with EITF 01-09 Accounting for Consideration Given to

Customer including Reseller of the Vendors Products Advertising and sales promotion expenses for the

years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 totaled $7.6 million $9.7 million and $7.5 million respectively

Research Engineering and Product Development ExpendituresResearch and product development

expenditures as well as the non-capitalized engineering costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $2.2

million in 2008 $2.2 million in 2007 and $1.9 million in 2006

Stock Based CompensationThe Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards No 123R SPAS

l23R on January
2006 In accordance with SFAS 123R the Company estimates the fair value of the stock

option on the grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model and assumptions for expected

price volatility option term risk-free interest rate and dividend yield and forfeitures Expected price
volatilities

are based on historical volatilities of the Companys stock The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual

life of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant
The fair value of the

stock based compensation is recognized on straight-line
basis over the requisite service period

income TaxesThe Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard

No 109 Accounting for income Taxes SFAS 109 as clarified by FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in income Taxes FIN 48 Under this method deferred income taxes are determined based on the

estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities

given the provisions of enacted tax laws Deferred income tax provisions and benefits are based on changes to the

assets or liabilities from year to year In providing
for deferred taxes the Company considers tax regulations of

the jurisdictions in which it operates estimates of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies If

tax regulations operating results or the ability to implement tax planning and strategies vary adjustments to the

carrying value of deferred tax assets and liabilities may be required Valuation allowances are recorded related to

deferred tax assets based on the more likely than not criteria of SFAS 109

Comprehensive income LossThe Company reports comprehensive income/loss under the provisions of

Financial Accounting Standard No 130 Reporting Comprehensive income SFAS 130 Comprehensive

income/loss is defined as the change in equity of business enterprise from transactions and other events from

non-owner sources Comprehensive income/loss includes net earnings/loss and other non-owner changes in

equity that bypass the statement of operations and are reported in separate component of equity For the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 other comprehensive income/loss includes the foreign currency
translation

adjustment
and the net of tax impact of an interest rate swap For the years ended December 31 2006 other

comprehensive income/loss only includes the foreign currency
translation adjustment

Accounts ReceivableThe majority of the Companys accounts receivable are due from retailers and two-step

distributors Credit is extended based on an evaluation of customers financial condition including at times the

availability of credit insurance and generally
collateral is not required Accounts receivable are due within

various time periods specified in the terms applicable to the specific customer and are stated at amounts due from

customers net of an allowance for claims and doubtful accounts
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The Company determines its allowance by considering number of factors including the length of time trade

accounts receivable are past due the Companys previous loss history the customers current ability to pay its

obligation to the Company availability of credit insurance and the condition of the general economy and the

industry as whole The Company writes off accounts receivable against the allowance for claims and doubtful

accounts when they are judged to be uncollectible and payments subsequently received on such receivables are

credited to customer claims or bad debt expense

InventoriesInventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market on first-in first-out basis

Concentration of Credit RiskThe Company has evaluated its concentration of credit risk as it applies both to

customers and to the institutions with which it places cash investments

The Company believes that its concentration of credit risk as it applies to customers is low due to its broad

customer base in all regions of the United States as well as other areas in North America and Europe Customer

concentration is described by those customers that accounted for more than 10 percent of sales as follows In

2008 net sales by the Cobra segment to Wal-Mart totaled 11.2 percent of consolidated net sales Net sales by the

Cobra segment to Wal-Mart in 2007 totaled 14.7
percent of consolidated net sales and in 2006 net sales by the

Cobra segment to Wal-Mart and QVC totaled 17.0
percent and 10.3 percent of consolidated net sales

respectively

The Company will selectively use credit insurance for certain accounts in light of managements judgment of

credit risk and the expense to acquire such insurance

The Company places temporary cash investments with institutions of high credit quality At December 31 2008

and 2007 the Company had approximately $2.0 million $1.8 million was on deposit in foreign banks and $1.9

million $1.2 million was on deposit in foreign banks respectively on deposit with such financial institutions of

which $1.2 million and $1.7 million respectively were in excess of amounts insured by the respective

governments The Company performs periodic evaluations of these institutions for relative credit standing and

has not experienced any losses as result of this concentration Consequently no significant concentration of

credit risk is considered to exist

DepreciationDepreciation of buildings tooling and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over

the following estimated useful lives Building improvements are depreciated using the straight-line method over

the lesser of the useful life or the lease term Depreciation expense totaled $1.9 million for 2008 $2.3 million for

2007 and $1.7 million for 2006

Classification Life

Buildings 30 years

Building improvements 20 years
Motor vehicles 25 years

Equipment 10 years

Tools dies and molds 1.5 4.5 years

Long-Lived AssetsLong-lived assets are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events indicate that the

carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable If such review indicates impairment the carrying

amount of such assets are reduced to an estimated fair value

Intangible assets subject to amortization are evaluated for impairment pursuant to Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard No 144 Accounting for the Impainnent or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS 144
which requires impairment testing whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an

amortizable intangible asset may not be recoverable If impairment indicators exist for an amortizable intangible

asset the undiscounted future cash flows associated with the expected service potential of the asset are compared
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to the carrying value of the asset If the projection of undiscounted future cash flows is in excess of the carrying

value of the intangible assets no impairment charge is recorded If the projection of undiscounted cash flows is

less than the carrying value of the intangible asset an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the intangible

asset to its fair value Economic conditions in the fourth quarter of 2008 triggered SFAS 144 impairment

analysis however no impairment resulted The Company recorded impairment charges of $266000 $3.0 million

and $2.8 million respectively for years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 The 2008 impairment charge

of $266000 was related to product software The 2007 impairment charge included $2.6 million for product

software impairment and $409000 for the write-down of tooling and prepaid assets The 2006 impairment charge

of $2.8 million was related to product software

Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsPursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No 142

Goodwill and Other intangible Assets SFAS 142 the Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on an

annual basis or if impairment indicators exist For goodwill the evaluation requires comparison of the

estimated fair value of PPL to which the goodwill has been assigned to the sum of the carrying value of the assets

and liabilities of that unit If the sum of the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of reporting unit exceeds

the fair value of that reporting unit the carrying value of the reporting units goodwill is reduced to its estimated

fair value through an adjustment to the goodwill balance resulting in an impairment charge

The fair values used in the SFAS 142 evaluation are estimated based upon discounted future cash flow

projections and comparisons with comparable companies as well as the Companys market capitalization The

Companys annual impairment review as of October 2008 was superseded by continued degradation of the

financial markets and the Companys stock price The Companys low stock price in relation to book value per

share triggered an impairment review of the goodwill associated with the PPL acquisition as of December 31

2008 Based on the year-end reconciliation of the book value to market capitalization $20.1 million

impairment charge was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2008 The Company tested for the impairment of

goodwill as of October 2007 and concluded the asset was not impaired

Amortization of intangible assets is computed using the straight-line
method over the following weighted average

useful lives

Classification
Life

Internal use software years

ERP internal software system years

Trademarks and tradenames
30 years

Patents
17 years

Product software based on product life cycle years

Enigma Database years

Noncompetition Agreements years

Customer Relationships
10 years

Amortization expense relating to intangible assets subject to amortization totaled $2.5 million in 2008 $3.9

million in 2007 and $2.7 million in 2006

Software Related to Products SoldThe Company purchases
and/or incurs costs in connection with the

development of software to be used in products that the Company intends to sell mainly mobile navigation

products Such costs are capitalized and deferred as intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No 86

Accounting for Costs of Computer Software to be Sold Leased or Otherwise Marketed SFAS 86 Such costs

consist of expenditures incurred after technological feasibility of the software has been established and working

model of the product developed and consist principally of coding and related costs Such costs are charged to

earnings based on the ratio of actual product sales during the reporting period to expected product sales over the

estimated product life cycle Software related intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for

possible impairment as required by paragraph 10 of SFAS 86 and accordingly if such review indicates that the

carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable the carrying amount is reduced to the estimated fair

value
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ERP System CostsThe Company capitalizes certain costs associated with ERP software developed or obtained

for internal use in accordance with Statement of Position No 98-1 ccounting for the Costs of Computer

Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use The Companys policy provides for the capitalization of

external direct costs of materials and services associated with developing or obtaining internal use ERP software

Capitalized costs are classified as intangible assets Costs associated with preliminary project activities and

training are expensed as incurred Capitalized costs related to ERP software developed or obtained for internal

use are amortized over seven year period on straight-line basis when the relevant ERP software is placed in

service Capitalized costs are classified as intangible assets

Deft rred IncomePPLs balance sheet includes current and long-term income for prepaid customer download

fees related to subscriptions to its Enigma database most commonly estimated for 2.5 years of service that was

recognized throughout 2007 and 2008 At December 31 2008 and 2007 current deferred income totaled $1.2

million and $1.6 million respectively and the long-term deferred income totaled $430000 and $515000
respectively

The current deferred income is classified as other accrued liabilities and the long-term deferred income is

classified as other long-term liabilities on the balance sheet

New Accounting Standards

SFAS No 141RBusiness Combinations In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard No 141R revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS
141R to change how an entity accounts for the acquisition of business When effective SFAS 141R will

replace existing SFAS 141 in its entirety SFAS 141R carries forward the existing requirements to account for all

business combinations using the acquisition method formerly called the purchase method In general SFAS
l4lR will require acquisition-date fair value measurement of identifiable assets acquired liabilities assumed and

non-controlling interests in the acquiree SFAS 141R will eliminate the current costbased purchase method

under SFAS 141

The new measurement requirements will result in the recognition of the full amount of acquisition-date goodwill
which includes amounts attributable to non-controlling interests The acquirer will recognize in income any gain

or loss on the remeasurement to acquisition-date fair value of consideration transferred or of previously acquired

equity interests in the acquiree Neither the direct costs incurred to effect business combination nor the costs the

acquirer expects to incur under plan to restructure an acquired business will be included as part of the business

combination accounting As result those costs will be charged to expense when incurred except for debt or

equity issuance costs which will be accounted for in accordance with other generally accepted accounting

principles SPAS 141R will also change the accounting for contingent consideration in process research and

development contingencies and restructuring costs In addition changes in deferred tax asset valuation

allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties in business combination that occur after the measurement

period will impact income taxes under SFAS 141R

SFAS 141R amends the goodwill impairment test requirements in SFAS 142 For goodwill impairment test as

of date after the effective date of SFAS 141R the value of the reporting unit and the amount of implied

goodwill calculated in the second step of the test will be determined in accordance with the measurement and

recognition guidance on accounting for business combinations under Statement 141R This change could effect

the determination of what amount if any should be recognized as an impairment loss for goodwill recorded

before the effective date of Statement 141R This accounting will be required when Statement l4lR becomes

effective January 2009 for the Company and applies to goodwill related to acquisitions accounted for

originally under SFAS 141 as well as those accounted for under SFAS 141R SFAS 141R is effective for fiscal

years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 Early adoption is

prohibited The Company will adopt SFAS 141R effective January 2009 and apply its provisions

prospectively
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On January 2008 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No 157 Fair Value

Measurements SFAS 157 as it relates to financial assets and liabilities In February 2008 the Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP No FAS 157-2 Effective Date of

FASB Statement No 157 which delayed the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on at

least an annual basis until January 2009 for calendar year-end entities Also in February 2008 the FASB

issued FSP No FAS 157-1 Application of FASB Statement No 157 to FASB Statement No 13 and Other

Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or

Measurement Under Statement 13 which states that SFAS No 13 Accounting for Leases SFAS 13 and other

accounting pronouncements that address fair value measurements for purposes
of lease classification or

measurement under SFAS 13 are excluded from the provisions of SFAS 157 except for assets and liabilities

related to leases assumed in business combination that are required to be measured at fair value under SFAS

No 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141 or SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business combinations SFAS
141

SFAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The

provisions of this standard apply to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value

measurements and are to be applied prospectively with limited exceptions The adoption of SFAS 157 as it

relates to financial assets had no impact on the financial statements Management is currently evaluating the

potential impact of SFAS 157 as it relates to nonfinancial assets and liabilities on the financial statements

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or pay to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date This standard is now the single source

in GAAP for the definition of fair value except for the fair value of leased property as defined in SFAS 13

SFAS 157 establishes fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions

developed based on market data obtained from independent sources observable inputs and an entitys own

assumptions about market participant assumptions developed based on the best information available in the

circumstances unobservable inputs The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels which gives the

highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities Level and the

lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under SFAS 157 are

described below

Level 1Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for

identical unrestricted assets or liabilities

Level 2Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are observable for the asset or

liability either directly or indirectly including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active inputs

other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability e.g interest rates and inputs that

are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means

Level 3Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable

SFAS No 160Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements In December 2007 the FASB

issued Financial Accounting Standard No 160 Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

SFAS 160 an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 changes the accounting for and the financial statement

presentation of non-controlling equity interests in consolidated subsidiary SFAS 160 replaces the existing

minority-interest provisions of Accounting Research Bulletin ARB 51 Consolidated Financial Statements by

defining new term non-controlling interests to replace what were previously called minority interests The new

standard establishes non-controlling interests as component of the equity of consolidated entity

The underlying principle of the new standard is that both the controlling interest and the non-controlling interests

are part of the equity of single economic entity the consolidated reporting entity Classifying non-controlling
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interests as component of consolidated equity is change from the current practice of treating minority interests

as mezzanine item between liabilities and equity or as liability The change affects both the accounting and

financial reporting for non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiary SFAS 160 includes reporting

requirements intended to clearly identify and differentiate the interests of the parent and the interests of the

non-controlling owners The reporting requirements are required to be applied retrospectively

SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or after

December 15 2008 Early adoption is prohibited The Company intends to adopt SFAS 160 effective January

2009 and apply its provisions prospectively The Company will also present comparative financial statements

that reflect the retrospective application of the disclosure and presentation provisions when it applies the

requirements of SFAS 160 The Company currently does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 160 will have

material effect on its financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activitiesand amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS 161 SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures

about an entitys derivative and hedging activities including how and why an entity uses derivative

instruments ii how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and

iiihow derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial

performance and cash flows This standard becomes effective for the Company on January 2009 Earlier

adoption of SFAS 161 and separately comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption are

encouraged As SFAS 161 only requires enhanced disclosures this standard will have no impact on the financial

statements

In April 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 142-3 Determination of the Useful Lfe of

Intangible Assets FSP No FAS 142-3 FSP No FAS 142-3 requires companies estimating the useful life of

recognized intangible asset to consider their historical experience in renewing or extending similararrangements

or in the absence of historical experience to consider assumptions that market participants would use about

renewal or extension as adjusted for SFAS No 142s Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets entity-specific

factors FSP No FAS 142-3 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company
is currently evaluating the potential impact of adoption of FSP No FAS 142-3 on its consolidated financial

statements However the Company does not expect the adoption of FSP No FAS 142-3 to have material effect

on its consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy

of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SFAS No 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and

the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements that are presented in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles SFAS No 162 becomes effective 60 days following

the SEC approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411 The

Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The Company does

not expect that the adoption of SFAS No 162 to have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

Acquisition of Performance Products Limited PPL
On October 20 2006 Cobra Electronics UK Ltd wholly owned subsidiary of Cobra Electronics Corporation

completed the acquisition of 100% of the issued and outstanding share capital of PPL PPL is provider of

GPS-enabled speed camera detection systems and personal navigation devices to consumers and retail locations

based in the United Kingdom as well as other locations in Europe

Under the acquisition agreement the purchase price for the issued share capital of PPL consisted of $21.2 million

paid in cash at the closing of the transaction The former shareholders of PPL were eligible to receive additional

cash consideration of up to approximately $6.5 million based on the achievement of certain performance targets

by PPL for the twelve-month period ended March 31 2007 the first earn-out period and up to approximately
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$9.4 million for the fourteen-month period ended May 31 2008 the final earn-out period Additional consideration

was not paid to the former shareholders for the first earn-out period The final earn-out payment to the former

shareholders of PPL totaling $8.5 million was paid on October 20 2008 and recorded as additional goodwill

The acquisition was funded from borrowings under an Amended and Restated Loan Agreement with LaS alle

Bank National Association as agent for the lenders dated October 19 2006 The final earn-out payment was

funded from borrowings under the Loan and Security Agreement the LSA with The Private Bank and Trust

Company as lender and agent and RBS Citizens N.A dated February 15 2008 Refer to Note 10 on Financing

Arrangements

Unaudited Pro Fonna information

The following unaudited pro-forma information shows the results of Cobra operations for the year
ended

December 31 2006 as though the acquisition of PPL occurred as of January
2006 in thousands

Total revenue
$164469

Net loss
3700

Net loss per common share

Basic
0.57

Diluted
0.57

The pro
forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the

actual results had the acquisition taken place as of January 2006 or the results that may occur in the future

Furthermore the pro forma results do not give effect to the cost savings or incremental costs that may occur as

result of the integration and consolidation of the acquisition

Goodwill Impairment

The Company recorded goodwill of $12 million in connection with the acquisition of Performance Products

Limited PPL in October 2006 Additional goodwill of $8.5 million resulted from the final earn-out payment

to the former PPL shareholders that was recorded in September 2008 and paid in October 2008

The Companys annual impairment review as of October 2008 was superseded by continued degradation of the

financial markets and the Companys stock price The Companys low stock price in relation to book value

triggered an impairment review of the goodwill associated with the PPL acquisition as of December 31 2008

Due to the on-going challenges in the worldwide economic climate and the continued weakness in the

Companys stock price management conducted an impairment test as of December 31 2008 Based on

managements belief that SEC guidance indicates that goodwill cannot be sustained if the gap between the book

value and market price cannot be explained by reasonable control premium the impairment test reconciled

book value to market value per share as part of this analysis As result of this reconciliation the discount rate

applied to the forecasted cash flows of PPL was more than doubled from that which was applied in the prior

impairment analyses and guideline company metrics were set at the low end of the range as compared to the

previous analyses which had set these more in line with the average for comparable companies These changes in

assumptions resulted in the impairment of the goodwill balance at PPL Consequently the Company recorded an

impairment charge of $20.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2008

roll-forward of the goodwill balance follows in thousands

Balance at January 2008 11997

Translation
377

Final earn-out payment
8464

Impairment charges
20084

Balance at December 31 2008
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Segment Information

The Company operates in two business segments Cobra Consumer Electronics Cobra and

Performance Products Limited PPL The Cobra segment is comprised of Cobra Electronics Corporation
Cobra Hong Kong Limited CHK and Cobra Electronics Europe Limited CEEL The Company has

separate sales departments and distribution channels for each segment which provide all segment exclusive

product lines to all customers for that segment Currently there are no intersegment sales

The tabular presentation below sets forth certain financial information regarding the Companys net sales and

long-lived assets by geographic area for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Year Ended December31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands
Net sales

Domestic
$89654 $121459 $133141

International
35091 34476 20554

Long-lived assets

Domestic
$14125 14976 18345

International
8075 24003 25170

The tabular presentation below summarizes the financial information by business segment for the year ended
December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 PPL was acquired on October 20 2006 and the results for 2006 only reflect

operations subsequent to that date

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

COBRA PPL TOTAL COBRA PPL TOTAL COBRA PPL TOTAL

In thousands

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Net sales $110846 13899 $124745 $141180 $14755 $155935 $150974 $2721 $153695
Costofsales 79849 6727 86576 115734 8800 124534 122325 1417 123742

Gross profit 30997 7172 38169 25446 5955 31401 28649 1304 29953
Selling general and administrative

expense 28994 5181 34175 33820 5814 39634 31008 1612 32620
Impairment of goodwill 20084 20084

Earnings loss from operations 2003 18093 16090 8374 141 8233 2359 308 2667
Interest expense 997 997 1619 36 1655 474 479
Other expense income 1565 422 1143 410 679 1089 330 267 63

Loss income before income

taxes 559 17671 18230 9583 784 8799 2503 580 3083
Tax expense benefit 366 232 598 4033 363 4396 1261 188 1449
Minority interest 11 11 19 19
Net loss earnings 925$17914$18839$ 5550$ 1128 4422$ 1242$ 388$ 1630

December 312008 December 312007 December 312006
COBRA PPL TOTAL COBRA PPL TOTAL COBRA PPL TOTAL

In thousands

Capital expenditures 1057 109 1166 1198 360 1558 1572 51 1623
Depreciation and

amortization 3537 1759 5296 5496 2429 7925 5326 526 5852
Impairment 266 20084 20350 3031 3031 2757 2757
Long-lived assets 14479 7721 22200 15376 23603 38979 18644 24871 43515
Total assets 65923 13075 78998 82294 32024 114318 84572 32186 116758
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Multiple Element Arrangements

In 2008 the Company bundled the sale of its PPL trucker navigation and other selected PPL navigation products

with ongoing access to its Enigma speed camera database in order to allow those customers who so chose to

update their databases for both navigation low bridge height data perceived as critical to some professional

drivers and speed camera locations which were co-mingled out of necessity in 2008 However in order to

receive these updates to these fully functional products customers must first register on PPL website The

Company deferred the revenue associated with the ongoing service period which was considered separate
unit

of accounting under EITF 00-21 Revenues deferred from this arrangement were calculated using the relative fair

market value method and amounted to $426000 at December 31 2008

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard No 109 Accounting

for Income Taxes SFAS 109 as clarified by FASB Interpretation
No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in

Income Taxes FIN 48 Under this method deferred income taxes are determined based on the estimated

future tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities given the

provisions of enacted tax laws Deferred income tax provisions and benefits are based on changes to the assets or

liabilities from year to year In providing for deferred taxes the Company considers tax regulations of the

jurisdictions in which it operates estimates of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies If tax

regulations operating results or the ability to implement tax planning and strategies vary adjustments to the

carrying value of deferred tax assets and liabilities may be required Valuation allowances are recorded related to

deferred tax assets based on the nzore likely than not criteria of SFAS 109

Amounts held by foreign subsidiaries are generally subject to U.S income taxation on repatriation to the U.S

The Company has not recorded deferred income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its Irish subsidiary

because of the Companys intent to indefinitely reinvest such earnings As of December 31 2008 U.S income

taxes have not been provided on cumulative total of $1.8 million of such earnings It is not practicable to

determine the income tax liability that might be incurred if these earnings were to be distributed Beginning in

2009 the Company will repatriate the future earnings of its Irish subsidiary

The provision benefit for income taxes for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 consists of

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Current provision benefit

Federal
80 $1459 844

State
14 296 152

Foreign
1697 443 58

1603 1312 1054

Deferred benefit provision

Federal
170 1915 1964

State
30 398 309

Foreign
1205 771 230

1005 3084 2503

Total provision benefit
598 $4396 $1449
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The statutory federal income tax rate 34%is reconciled to the effective income tax rate as follows

2008 2007 2006

34.0% 34.O% 34.O%
0.5 4.9 2.6

1.4 8.1 5.1
0.5 1.0 13.0

3.6 4.3

31.4

3.2

2.5 0.9 2.0

0.2 0.7 1.4

3.3% 50.0% 47.0%

Deferred tax assets and liabilities by type at December 31 2008 and 2007 are as follows

654 935

998 2604
2605 2506

438 759

335 1284

390 527

1743 714

766 145

1332 366

116
_____

9377 9840

1983 3188
372 541
852 1042
19 39

87
3226 4897

$6151 $4943

summary of the pre-tax earnings loss and tax provision benefit for the years ended December 31 2008
2007 and 2006 by major taxing jurisdiction follows

2008 2007

PreTax Tax Pre-Tax Tax
Loss Proision Income Loss Benefit

in thousands
United States 2114 $106 $10866 $4068
Foreign 16116 492 2067 328
Total $18230 $598 8799 $4396

2006

Pre-Tax Tax
Loss Benefit

$2606
477

$3083

$1281
168

$1449

Income taxes at statutory federal income tax rate

State taxes net of federal income tax benefit

Foreign operations

credit

Valuation allowance

Goodwill impairment

CSV loss

Other permanent
Other

Effective tax rate

2008 2007

in thousands
Deferred tax assets

Sales/receivable reserves

Inventory reserves

Compensation reserves

Accrued promotion expenses

Warranty reserves

Property plant and equipment
AMT credit carry-forward

expenditures

Net operating loss carry-forward

Interest rate swap

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Tax basis difference on PPL assets acquired

Prepaid expenses

Intangible assets

Other

Interest rate swap

Deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax asset

Reconciliation of deferred tax to Consolidated Balance Sheets

Current Assets

Deferred income taxes 8134 8715
Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred income taxes 1983 3772
Net deferred tax asset 6151 4943
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summary of the deferred tax assetlliability by major taxing jurisdiction at December 31 2008 and 2007

follows

2008 2007

in thousands

United States
8134 8131

Foreign
1983 3188

Total
6151 4943

At December 31 2008 the Company had an AMT credit carry forward of $1.7 million which does not expire to

offset against future income tax payments

deferred tax valuation allowance was not required at December 31 2008 Management believes it is more

likely than not that projected future taxable income together with the tax effects of the deferred tax liabilities

will be sufficient to fully recover the deferred tax assets During 2007 the valuation allowance for CEELs net

operating
loss carry-forward was reversed The net change in the total valuation allowance during the 2007 was

$315000 The Company will carry-forward $2.4 million of 2008s net operating loss NOL to future periods

The tax benefit for 2008s NOL carryforward
will expire in 2028 The Companys NOL for 2007 was carried

back to priorperiods

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation No 48 FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainly in income Taxes on

January
2007 FIN 48 clarifies SFAS No 109 Accounting for income Taxes by providing the criteria tax

position must satisfy for some or all the tax benefit to be recognized in the financial statements FIN 48

prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and

determination of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return FIN 48 also provides guidance on

derecognition classification interest penalties disclosure transition and accounting in interim periods The

adoption of FIN 48 resulted in an unrecognized tax benefit of $233000 and $29000 decrease in the

unrecognized tax liability was recorded as an increase to retained earnings as of January 2007

Interest and penalties are included in the income tax expense During the year ended December 31 2008 interest

expense of $6000 and penalties of $1000 were included the tax expense for 2008 At December 31 2008 the

Company has accrued $12000 for the payment of interest and $5000 for the payment of penalties

reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the unrecognized tax benefit follows in thousands

Balance at January 2008
93

Additions for current year tax positions
29

Reductions for prior years tax positions

Decreases for prior years tax positions
due to settlements with taxing authorities

Decreases for prior years tax positions
due to lapse of statute of limitations

Balance at December 31 2008
$122

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would impact the effective tax rate if recognized is $29000

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits is not expected to significantly change in the next twelve months

The federal tax returns for the 2005 to 2007 tax years remain open to examination State tax returns for the 2000

to 2007 tax years
remain open to examination by certain tax jurisdictions The major foreign jurisdictions where

Cobra files tax returns are the United Kingdom and Ireland The 2006 and 2007 tax years are open to

examination in those foreign jurisdictions
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Mobile Navigation Strategy Change

The Companys decision to change its North American mobile navigation strategy resulted in $7.7 million

charge $7.5 million charged to cost of sales and $133000 charged to selling general and administrative expense
in the fourth quarter of 2007 This

strategy change limits the future development of mass market mobile

navigation products in North America to unique mobile navigation products sold into niche markets with

specialized and focused distribution and employs lower cost sourcing arrangements utilizing the platform of

Performance Products Limited or that of other qualified vendors The components of the $7.7 million charge in

the fourth quarter of 2007 follows

Description Amount

in thousands

Product warranty and liquidation reserves $3008
Product software impairment 2622
Tooling packaging and

parts write-downs 1243

Inventory write-downs 676

Cost of salescharge 7549

Severance
83

Prepaid write-offs 50

Selling general and administrativecharge 133

Total $7682

In the second quarter of 2008 the Company incurred $266000 product software impairment charge because

lower selling prices were anticipated for the remaining mobile navigation units on-hand The mobile navigation

strategy change reserve totaled $250000 at December 31 2008 and the Company does not expect future costs to

exceed the current reserve balance

The employee terminations resulting from the mobile navigation strategy change resulted in $83000
severance-related charge in the fourth quarter of 2007 All severance obligations were settled in 2008 roll-

forward of the severance liability follows

Amount

in thousands

Balance at January 2008 83

Severance payments in 2008 83
Balance at December 31 2008 $0

Variable Interest Entity

Effective with the acquisition of PPL on October 20 2006 the Company applied FASB Interpretation No 46R
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities which is an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No 51
Consolidated Financial Statements ARB 51 FIN 46R addresses the application of ARB 51 to variable

interest entities VIE and generally requires that assets liabilities and results of activity of VIE be

consolidated into the financial statements of the enterprise that is considered the primary beneficiary

The Companys financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008 reflect the consolidation of joint

venture Performance Products Nordic PPN in which PPL owns 75% equity interest at December 31 2008
This entity serves as PPLs strategic marketer for the Nordic countries PPN had no significant outstanding debt

as of December 31 2008 and has reported cumulative net operating profit in its short history Thus PPN was
determined to be variable interest entity for which PPL was determined to be the primary beneficiary under

FIN46R
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For the year ended December 31 2008 the consolidation of PPN added approximately $10000 to the

Companys net sales and increased the Companys net earnings by approximately $8000 As of December 31

2008 the fair value of the assets of this joint venture was approximately $52000 and the fair values of the

associated liabilities and non-controlling interests totaled approximately $40000

The liabilities of PPN do not represent
additional claims on the Companys general assets rather they represent

claims against the specific assets of PPN Likewise the assets of FPN do not represent additional assets available

to satisfy claims against the Companys general assets

10 Financing Arrangements

The amended and restated loan agreement as of December 31 2007 contained covenants on the following

tangible net worth capital expenditures EBITDA DebtJEBITDA ratio fixed charge coverage ratio foreign

investments and loans to PPL During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company did not meet the covenants for the

debtIEBITDA ratio and fixed coverage ratio However the lenders agreed to waive the non-compliance as of

December 31 2007 At December 31 2007 the Company had interest bearing debt outstanding of $20.0 million

consisting of the $5.7 million term loan and $14.3 million borrowed under the revolving credit facility in the

Companys previous credit agreement As of December 31 2007 availability was approximately $17.9 million

under the revolving credit facility based on the borrowing base formula

On February 15 2008 the Company entered into Loan and Security Agreement the LSA with The Private

Bank and Trust Company as lender and agent and RBS Citizens N.A for $5.7 million term loan facility and

$40 million revolving credit facility both of which mature on October 19 2011 Borrowings under the term loan

were used to pay off the balance and close the term loan from the Companys previous credit agreement

Borrowings under the new revolving credit facility were used to pay off and close the previous revolving credit

facility and for general corporate purposes The LSA replaced the Companys previous credit agreement

At December 31 2008 the Company had interest bearing debt outstanding of $17.7 million consisting of the

$4.5 million term loan and $13.2 million borrowed under the revolving credit facility As of December 31 2008

availability was approximately $10.5 million under the revolving credit facility based on the borrowing base

formula

Maximum borrowings outstanding at any month end were $20.5 million and $27.4 million in 2008 and 2007

respectively Aggregate average daily borrowings outstanding were $17.6 million during 2008 and $19 million

during 2007 with weighted average
interest rates thereon of 5.3 percent and 7.8 percent for 2008 and 2007

respectively

Aggregate principal repayments of long-term debt excluding payments on capital lease obligations over the next

five years as of December 312008 are as follows

Year
Loan Revolver Total

in thousands

2009 $1370 1370

2010 1760 1760

2011 1320 13221 14541

$4450 $13221 $17671

The term loan requires $310000 payment at the end of each calendar quarter through September 30 2009 and

$440000 payment for the remaining seven quarters Interest under the LSA is calculated based on the base rate

Prime or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5 percent per annum or LIBOR at the Companys option plus an

applicable margin The margin which was at year-end -0.5 percent
for the base rate loan and 1.0 percent for

LIBOR loans is determined based on the Companys total debt to EBITDA ratio tested quarterly commencing

as of June 30 2008 The revolving credit facility under the LSA is also subject to an unused line fee of 0.25

percent Borrowings under the LSA are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company except
for

equity interests in non-US subsidiaries
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The year-end interest for the term loan was 6.34 percent at December 31 2008 and 7.59 percent at December 31
2007 The year-end interest rate for the portion of revolving loan at prime was 2.75 percent at December 31
2008 and 7.75 percent at December 2007 The year-end interest for the portion of the revolving loan at LIBOR
was 2.33

percent at December 31 2008 and 7.22 percent at December 31 2007

The LSA allows the Company to pay dividends repurchase its stock and pay earn-out proceeds associated with

the acquisition of PPL Availability under the revolver is calculated based on borrowing base formula including

75 percent of eligible accounts receivable 60 percent of eligible inventory and 60 percent of open trade letters of

credit but it can be subject to reserves at the lenders discretion Excess availability must be at least $3 million at

all times The LSA contains certain financial and other covenants including fixed charge coverage ratio and

debt to EBITDA ratio The term loan is subject to quarterly installment payments and mandatory prepayments
based on certain asset sales and issuance of equity or debt The Company was in compliance with all debt

covenants at December 31 2008

11 Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Derivatives

The Companys financial instruments include cash cash surrender value of officers life insurance policies

accounts receivable accounts payable current portion of long-term debt long-term debt and letters of credit The

carrying values of cash accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their fair value because of the

short maturity of these instruments The carrying amounts of the Companys bank borrowings under its credit

facility approximate fair value because the interest rates are reset periodically to reflect current market rates The

letters of credit reflect fair value as condition of their underlying purpose and are subject to fees competitively
determined in the marketplace The contract value/fair value of the letters of credit at December 31 2008 was
$2.0 million and at December 31 2007 was $3.6 million These letters of credit are only executed with major
financial institutions and full performance is anticipated

As of December 31 2008 the Company had derivative contract for an interest swap that was valued using

quoted market prices This financial instrument is exchange-traded and is classified within Level of the fair

value hierarchy because the exchange is not deemed to be an active market The derivative was classified as

long-term liability on the balance sheet As of December 31 2008 the fair value of the interest rate swap was

$291000

The Companys derivative contracts for interest rate swaps and foreign exchange contracts are reported at fair

value in the accompanying balance sheet Fair value is measured on recurring basis in accordance with Level

of the fair value hierarchy since the derivatives are not traded in an active market The derivative is classified as

long-term liability in the balance sheet The following table provides the fair value information as of

December 31 2008 and 2007

December 312008 December 312007

Fair Value Fair Value

Significant Significant

Other Observable Other Observable
Carrying Total Inputs Carrying Total Inputs
Amount Fair Value Level Amount Fair Value Level

In thousands

Interest rate swap $291 291 291 $176 176 176

The Company operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities The Company may reduce

its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through derivative financial

instruments The Company currently does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative

purposes The Company regularly monitors foreign exchange exposures and ensures hedge contract amounts do

not exceed the amounts of the underlying exposures
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The Companys current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and an interest rate swap The

purpose of the foreign currency hedging activities is to protect the Company from the risk that eventual

settlement of foreign currency transactions will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates The purpose

of the interest rate swap is to fix the interest rate for the term of the revolving loan thereby protecting the

Company from future interest rate increases

The Company hedges foreign exchange exposures by entering into various short-term foreign exchange forward

contracts Under SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities the instruments

are carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as component of current liabilities Changes in the

fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable hedging criteria of SFAS No 133 are

recorded as component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period during

which the hedged transaction affects earnings Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts

that do not meet the applicable hedging criteria of SFAS No 133 are recorded currently in income as cost of

sales Hedging activities did not have material impact on results of operations or financial condition during the

year ended December 31 2008 At December 31 2008 the Company did not have any open foreign exchange

contracts for U.S dollars pound sterling or euros The carrying value of the interest rate swap net of tax totaled

$175000 and $89000 respectively at December 31 2008 and 2007

12 Lease Transactions

The Company leases facilities and equipment under non-cancelable leases with remaining terms of one year or

more expiring at various dates through the year
2020 The terms of the agreements provide that the Company

will pay certain operating expenses The capital lease provides
the Company with the option to purchase

the

related asset at the end of the respective initial lease terms The gross amount and accumulated amortization for

assets subject to the capital lease at December 31 2008 was $317000 and $302000 respectively The present

value of the capital lease was $18000 less $3000 of interest

Total minimum rental amounts committed in future years as of December 31 2008 are as follows

Operating Capital

Lease Lease Total

In thousands

2009
$560 $18 $578

2010
488 488

2011
180 180

2012
180 180

2013
179 179

Thereafter
585 585

Total
$2172 $18 $2190

Total rental expense amounted to $752000 in 2008 $658000 in 2007 and $466000 in 2006

13 Shareholders Equity

Preferred StockPreferred stock is issuable at anytime in one or more series each of which may have such

voting powers designations preferences relative participating optional or other special rights and

qualifications limitations or restrictions thereof as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions

providing for the issue of such stock adopted by the Board of Directors The Company has designated 120000 of

the million authorized shares of preferred stock as Series Junior Participating preferred stock No preferred

stock has been issued
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14 Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per common share are reported in conformity with Financial Accounting Standard

No 128 Earnings per Share SFAS 128 Basic earnings per share excludes any dilution and is computed by
dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares

outstanding for the period Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities

or other contracts to issue common stock resulted in the issuance of common stock If the common stock

equivalents have an anti-dilutive effect they are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share

2008 2007 2006

in thousands except per share

data
Basic loss per share

Net loss available to common shareholders $18839 $4422 $1630
Weighted-average shares outstanding 6471 6458 6482

Basic loss per share
2.91 0.68 0.25

Diluted loss per share

Weighted-average shares outstanding 6471 6458 6482
Dilutive shares issuable in connection with stock option plans

Less shares purchasable with option proceeds

Total 6471 6458 6482

Diluted loss per share 2.91 0.68 0.25

Stock options to purchase 509296 shares were not included in the calculation for diluted earnings per share

for the year ended December 31 2008 because the exercise price exceeded the market price Stock options
to purchase 477546 and 591166 and shares were not included in the calculation for diluted earnings per
share for the

year ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively because the effect was anti-dilutive

15 Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has equity-based compensation plans from which stock-based compensation awards can be

granted to eligible employees officers or directors

The Company awarded stock-based compensation of 195000 shares with ten year term to employees and
officers during the year ended December 31 2007 The Company did not grant stock options in 2006 and 2008
The stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 totaled $253000
$223000 and $48000 respectively

The Company estimates the fair value of the stock option on the grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton

option pricing model and assumptions for expected price volatility option term risk-free interest rate and

dividend yield Expected price volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the Companys stock The
risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in

effect at the time of grant The expected forfeiture rate of percent was based on the actual forfeitures for the

current and previous awards The fair value of the stock option is recognized on straight-line basis over the

requisite service period The assumptions for the 2007 stock award are shown in the following table

Risk-free interest rate 4.0 4.6%

Expected life
10

years
Expected volatility 4043%

The Company has six Stock Option Plans2002 Outside Directors Plan 2000 Outside Directors Plan 2000
1998 1997 and 1995 the Plans The Companys 1997 and 1995 plans were terminated in accordance with the
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respective plan terms on March 13 2007 and March 17 2005 Under the terms of the Plans the consideration

received by the Company upon exercise of the options may be paid in cash or by the surrender and delivery to the

Company of previously owned shares of its conmion stock or by combination thereof The optionee is credited

with the fair market value of any stock surrendered and delivered as of the exercise date Options become

exercisable in annual 25 percent increments commencing twelve months after the date of grant

summary of certain provisions and amounts related to the Plans follows in thousands

Authorized unissued shares originally available for grant
25

Granted

Shares available for grant at December 31 2008 21

Options exercisable at December 31 2008

summary of the status of the Plans as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 and changes during the years

ended on those dates is presented below

Fixed Options

Outstanding at beginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Cancellations and expirations

Outstanding at end of year

Options exercisable at year end

Weighted-average fair value of options

granted during the year

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31 2008

2002 2000 1998 1997

Plan Plans Plan Plan

In thousands

1995

Plan

325 310 300 300

299 310 300 300

26

171 111 55 25

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Shares Exercise Shares Exercise

000 Price 000 Price 000 PrIce

684 $6.13 591 6.13 601 $6.14

195 10.78

68 5.92 10 6.56

175 34

509 7.99 684 7.50 591 6.13

366 481 576

5.23

Range of Exercise Price

Options Outstanding

Number

Outstanding

000

Options Exercisable

$4.01 to$5.00

$5.01 to $6.00

$6.01 to$7.00

$7.01 to$8.00

$8.01 to$9.00

$9.01 to$10.00

$10.Olto$11.00

Total

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Price

52 4.13

5.69

146 6.34

104 7.15

8.41

9.55

10.78

Weighted

Average
Remaining

Contractual

Life

0.6

1.4

1.8

3.4

3.1

5.1

8.2

Number
Exercisable

000

52

146

101

10

47

366

10

187

509

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Price

4.13

5.69

6.34

7.14

8.41

9.55

10.78

5.557.99
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summary of the nonvested stock options at December 31 2008 and changes during the
year then ended

follows

Weighted Average
Shares Grant Date

000 Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31 2007 203 $10.69

Forfeitures
10.78

Vested 52 10.57

Nonvested at December 31 2008 143 $10.72

The intrinsic value of the options outstanding at December 31 2008 was zero The total unrecognized

compensation cost was $507000 as of December 31 2008 and will be recognized as stock compensation cost

over the next three years

16 Retirement Benefits

The Company has tax-qualified retirement savings plan the Cobra Electronics Corporation Profit Sharing and

401k Incentive Savings Plan the Plan under which participating employees may contribute up to the yearly

statutory maximum into their Plan accounts In addition under the Plan the Company matches amounts

contributed by the participant up to certain percent of earnings not to exceed the statutory maximum Matching
40 1k expenses for 2008 2007 and 2006 were $232000 $246000 and $275000 respectively The Plan also

allows the Company to make discretionary profit sharing contributions to the Plan accounts for the benefit of

participating employees for any calendar year in an amount determined by the Board of Directors Plan profit

sharing expenses for 2008 2007 and 2006 were $0 Non-U.S defined contribution expenses amounted to

$57000 in 2008 $38000 in 2007 and $9000 in 2006

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 deferred compensation of $6.5 million and $6.3 million respectively was

recorded as long-term liability The current portion of the deferred compensation liability was included in

accrued salaries and commissions and amounted to $68000 at December 31 2008 and $68000 at December 31
2007 Deferred compensation obligations arise pursuant to outstanding key executive deferred compensation

plans most of which are non-qualified defined benefit arrangements The liability is based on discounted future

cash flows related to these arrangements The discount rate used at December 31 2008 and 2007 was percent

The cash surrender value of officers life insurance policies is classified on the balance sheet as non-current

asset The cash value of officers life insurance policies is maintained to recover the costs of deferred

compensation obligations and the
aggregate death benefit to the Company at December 31 2008 totaled

$18.8 million
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17 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

December31

2008 2007

in thousands

Internal use software
2154 2112

Less accumulated amortization 1962 1812

192 300

ERP internal software system
4204 4058

Less accumulated amortization 1944 1353

2260 2705

Trademarks tradenames and patents
5405 6142

Less accumulated amortization 1053 942

4352 5200

Product software net of impairment
466 2382

Less accumulated amortization net of impainnent 255 1467

211 915

Enigma database
1118 1460

Less accumulated amortization 491 356

627 1104

Noncompetition agreements
194 254

Less accumulated amortization 142 102

52 152

Customer relationships
4517 5902

Less accumulated amortization 993 719

3524 5183

Total
$11218 $15559

The decrease in the gross value of intangible assets at December 31 2008 from the gross value at December 31

2007 was mainly due to the lower foreign exchange rate used to translate PPLs assets from the pound sterling to

the U.S dollar Product software impairment charges totaled $266000 $2.6 million and $2.8 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The product software asset and accumulated

amortization shown above are presented net of the respective impairment charges

The anticipated amortization expense of intangible assets over the next years
is $2.0 million in 2009

$1.6 million in 2010 $1.5 million in 2011 $1.3 million in 2012 and $1.0 million in 2013

18 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to various unresolved legal actions which arise in the normal course of its business

None of these matters is expected to have material adverse effect on the Companys financial position or results

of operations However the ultimate resolution of these matters can not be determined at this time

The Company warrants to the consumer who purchases its products that it will repair or replace without charge

defective products
within specified time period generally one year The Company also has return policy for
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its customers that allow them to return to the Company products returned to them by their customers for full or

partial credit based on when the Companys customer last purchased these products Consequently it maintains

warranty reserve which reflects historical warranty return rates by product category multiplied by the most

recent six months of unit sales of that model and the unit standard cost of the model roll-forward of the

warranty reserve is as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Accrued product warranty costs January 3440 1963 1618

Warranty provision 2908 4304 3873

Warranty expenditures 5451 2827 3528
Accrued product warranty costs December 31 897 3440 1963

The decrease in the accrued warranty reserve from the prior year-end is mainly due to the reduced sales in 2008

of mobile navigation products

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had outstanding inventory purchase orders with suppliers totaling

approximately $16.6 million and $17.8 million respectively

19 Inventory Valuation Reserves

The Company maintains liquidation reserve representing the write-down of returned product from its customers

to its net realizable value Returned inventory is either sold to various liquidators or returned to vendors for

partial credit against similar new models The decision to sell or return products to vendors depends upon the

estimated future demand for the models Judgments are made as to whether various models are to be liquidated

or returned to the vendor taking into consideration the liquidation prices expected to be received and the amount

of the vendor credit The amount of the reserve is determined by comparing the cost of each unit returned to the

estimated amount to be realized upon each units disposition either from returning the unit to the vendor for

partial credit towards the cost of new similarproduct or liquidating the unit This reserve can fluctuate

significantly from
quarter to quarter depending upon quantities of returned inventory on hand and the estimated

liquidation price or vendor credit per unit roll-forward of the liquidation reserve is as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Liquidation reserve January 2695 1112 874

Liquidation provision 4490 7339 4115

Liquidation of models 6562 5756 3877

Liquidation reserve December 31 623 2695 1112

The decrease in the inventory liquidation reserve from the prior year-end is mainly due to reduced sales in 2008

of mobile navigation products
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The Company maintains net realizable value NRV reserve to write-down as necessary
certain inventory

not previously sold to customers except for that covered by the liquidation reserve discussed above below cost

The reserve includes models where it is determined that the NRV is less than cost Thus judgments must be

made about which slow-moving excess or non-current models are to be included in the reserve and the estimated

net realizable value of such models The estimated realizable value of each model is the per
unit price that it is

estimated to be received if the model was sold in the marketplace This reserve will vary depending upon the

specific models selected the estimated NRV for each model and quantities of each model that are determined

will be sold below cost from quarter to quarter
roll-forward of the NRV reserve is as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Net realizable reserve January
1614 736 509

NRV provision
870 4121 3426

NRV write-offs 2375 3243 3199

Net realizable reserve December 31 109 1614 736

The decrease in the NRV reserve from the prior year-end is mainly due to the reduced sales in 2008 of mobile

navigation products

20 Stockholder Rights Plan

The Company maintains Stockholder Rights Plan the Plan designed to deter coercive or unfair takeover

tactics to prevent person or group
from gaining control of the Company without fair value to all shareholders

and to deter other abusive takeover tactics that are not in the best interest of shareholders The Company has

designated 120000 of the million authorized shares of the preferred stock as Series Junior Participating

preferred stock

Under the terms of the Plan each share of common stock is accompanied by one right each right entitles the

shareholder to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of newly issued share of Series Junior

Preferred Stock par
value $1 per share of the Company at an exercise price of $35 The rights become

exercisable 10 days after public announcement that an Acquiring Person as defined in the Plan has become

the beneficial owner of 15 percent or more of the outstanding shares of the Company the Stock Acquisition

Date or 10 business days after the commencement of tender or exchange offer that would result in person

beneficially owning 15 percent or more of such shares The Company can redeem the rights for $0.01 per right at

any
time until the earlier of 10 days following the Stock Acquisition Date or the final expiration of the rights

The rights will expire on November 2011 unless redeemed earlier by the Company

In the event that any person becomes an Acquiring Person each right will entitle the holder except for the

Acquiring Person thereof upon payment of the current exercise price to receive shares of common stock of the

Company which at the time of such person becoming an Acquiring Person have market value equal to two

times the then current exercise price If after the public announcement has been made that any person
has

become an Acquiring Person the Company merges into or consolidates with another person with limited

exceptions ii another person with limited exceptions merges into or consolidates with the Company and

shares of common stock of the Company are converted into securities of another person cash or property or

iii the Company transfers 50 percent or more of its consolidated assets cash flow or earning power to another

person with limited exceptions each right will entitle the holder thereof to receive upon payment of the current

exercise price the number of shares of common stock of the Acquiring Person or of another person affiliated

therewith which at the time of consummation of the transaction have market value equal to two times the

then current exercise price
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21 Allowance for Claims and Doubtful Accounts

The
following table shows the activity in the allowance for claims and doubtful accounts

2008 2007

in thousands

$205 $282

28

105

_____
205

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

67 41 $258

1558 17 12
190 705 199
158 326 16

$1143 $1089 63

The Company reports comprehensive income/loss under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standard
No 130 Reporting Comprehensive Income SFAS 130 Comprehensive income/loss is defined as the change
in equity of business enterprise from transactions and other events from non-owner sources Comprehensive
income/loss includes net earnings/loss and other non-owner changes in equity that bypass the statement of

operations and are reported in separate component of equity For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007
other comprehensive income/loss includes the foreign currency translation adjustment and the net of tax impact
of an interest rate swap For the year ended December 31 2006 other comprehensive income/loss only includes
the foreign currency translation adjustment

summary of the comprehensive income/loss for the three-year period ending December 31 2008 follows

2008 2007

in thousands

$2462 $238

291 176

2753 414

_______
87

______
$327

Balance January

Provision for claims and doubtful accounts 118

Write-offs less recoveries 216
Balance December 31

107

22 Other Income Expense

The following table shows the components of other income/expense

2006

$275

84

77
$282

Interest income

CSV income loss

Exchange gain loss
Othernet

23 Comprehensive Income Loss

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Interest rate swapgross

Total excluding tax effect of interest rate swap
Tax effect of interest rate swap 116

Total net of tax $2637

2006

11

11

11
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

Quarter Ended

March31 June30 September30 December31

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

in thousands except per share amounts

Net sales $28858 $32036 $34318 $39215 $33242 $39283 28327 $45401

Gross profit 8916 8088 11440 8380 9704 9733 8109 5200

Net earnings loss 81 720 1710 434 142 404 20772 3672

Net earnings loss per

share

Basic 0.01 0.11 0.26 0.07 0.02 0.06 3.21 0.57

Diluted 0.01 0.11 0.26 0.07 0.02 0.06 3.21 0.57

The sum of the quarterly net earnings per share amounts may not equal the annual amount because net

earnings per
share are calculated independently for each quarter
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There were no changes in or disagreements with the Companys auditors regarding accounting or financial

disclosure matters

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has established disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13 a-15e and 15 d-15e
under the Exchange Act to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files

or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods

specified in SEC rules and forms The Companys disclosure controls and procedures have also been designed to

ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the

Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Companys management including the principal

executive officer and principal financial officer to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

During 2008 the Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the

Companys management including the Companys principal executive officer and principal financial officer of

the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures Based on this evaluation the principal

executive officer and principal financial officer of the Company have concluded that the Companys disclosure

controls and procedures are effective as of December 31 2008

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15t under the Exchange Act

Management of the Company including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer assessed the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 Management

based this assessment on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission Based on this assessment management determined that as of December 31 2008 the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public

accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to

attestation by the Companys registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and

Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only managements report in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Changes in lntemal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

fourth quarter of 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys
internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information in response to this item will be set forth in definitive proxy statement to be filed by the Company

pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the Companys 2008 fiscal year and such

information is hereby incorporated by reference

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics the Code which applies solely to the

Companys officers senior financial accounting and financial personnel and directors The Company has posted

the Code on its website at www.cobra.com and any waivers of or amendments to the Code will be approved by

the Board of Directors or the Governance and Nominating Committee of the Companys Board of Directors Any

change to or waiver of the Code will be disclosed by publishing statement on the Companys website

Additional information concerning Cobras executive officers is included under Executive Officers of the

Registrant in Part

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information in response to this item will be set forth in definitive proxy statement to be filed by the Company

pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the Companys 2008 fiscal year and such

information provided that the Compensation Committee Report shall not be deemed filed in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K
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Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder

Matters

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about stock options outstanding and shares available for future awards

under all of Cobras equity compensation plans The information is as of December 31 2008 Cobra Electronics

has not made any grants outside of its equity compensation plans

Number of securities

remainingavailable for

Number of securities to be Weighted-average future issuance under
Issued upon exercise of exercise price of equity compensation

outstanding options warrants outstanding options plans excluding securities
Plan Category and rights warrants and rights reflected In column

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 495296 $8.02 105681
Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holders 14000 7.22 02
Total 509296 7.99 10568

Represents shares from the 2000 Plan

The 36000 shares available or issued under these plans may not be issued to directors prior to the approval
of the plans by security holders

Set forth below is brief description of the material features of each of the Companys equity compensation

plans that was adopted without the approval of the Companys shareholders and that were in effect at

December 31 2008

2002 Outside Directors Stock Option Plan

This plan includes total of 25000 non-qualified stock options to be granted to Directors who are not officers or

employees of the Company The stock option committee designated by the Companys Board of Directors has

the authority to select persons who will receive options and determine the number of shares of common stock

subject to each option and all other terms and conditions of each option The period for the exercise of each

option and the exercise price for an option will also be determined by the Stock Option committee An option

may be exercised by giving written notice to the Company specifying the number of whole shares of common
stock to be purchased

2000 Outside Directors Stock Option Plan

This plan includes total of 25000 non-qualified stock options to be granted to Directors who are not officers or

employees of the Company The stock option committee designated by the Companys Board of Directors has

the authority to select
persons who will receive options and determine the number of shares of common stock

subject to each option and all other terms and conditions of each option The period for the exercise of each

option and the exercise price for an option will also be determined by the Stock Option committee An option

may be exercised by giving written notice to the Company specifying the number of whole shares of common
stock to be purchased

Other information in response to this item will be set forth in definitive proxy statement to be filed by the

Company pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the Companys 2008 fiscal year and such

information is hereby incorporated by reference
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph compares the yearly percentage change in the Companys cumulative total

shareholder return on the Companys Common Stock for the five-year period December 31 2003 to

December 31 2008 with the percentage change in the cumulative total return for the Russell 2000 Index the

Russell Index and peer group of companies selected by the Company

Peer Group consists of Emerson Radio Corporation Koss Corporation and Audiovox Corporation In selecting

companies for the peer groups the Company focused on publicly traded companies that design and market

electronics products which have characteristics similar to that of the Companys in terms of one or more of the

following type of product end market distribution channels sourcing or sales volume The returns of each of

the companies in the peer groups have been weighted according to their respective stock market capitalizations at

the beginning of each period for which return is indicated

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among Cobra Electronics The Russell 2000 Index

And Peer Group

$200
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$100

$50

$0
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Fiscal Year Ended December 31

R- Cobra Electronics --A Russell 2000

--s- Peer Group

1X invested on 12/31/03 in stock index-including reinvestment of dividends Fiscal year ending December 31
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Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information in response to this item will be set forth in definitive proxy statement to be filed by the Company
pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the Companys 2008 fiscal year and such

information is hereby incorporated by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information in response to this item will be set forth in definitive proxy statement to be filed by the Company
pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the Companys 2008 fiscal year and such

information is hereby incorporated by reference

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules

Page or

Schedule

Description Number

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 36

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended December 31
2008 37

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2007 and 2008 8-39

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31
2008 40

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income

Loss for the three years ended December 31 2008 41

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 42-64

Quarterly Financial Data 65

Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits on pages 72 through 74
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

COBRA ELEcTRoNIcs CORPORATION

Is MIcHAEL SMITH

Michael Smith

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Dated March 17 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

/5/ JAMEs BAzET Director Chairman of the Board President

James Bazet
and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

/5/ MICHAEL SMITH Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Michael Smith Principal Financial Officer

Is GERALD LAuRES Vice PresidentFinance and Corporate Secretary

Gerald Laures Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ WILLIAM CARMIcHAEL Director

William Carmichael

/s JoHN Luo Director

John Lupo

Is/ IAN MILLER Director

Ian Miller

Is SAM PARK Director

Sam Park

/s RoBERT ROHLEDER Director

Robert Rohieder

Dated March 17 2009
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

2-1 Share Purchase Deed dated October 14 2006 among Cobra Electronics UK Limited Performance

Products Limited and the shareholders of Performance Products LimitedFiled as Exhibit No 2-1

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 19 2006 File No 0-511 and

hereby incorporated by reference

3-1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended October 28 1998Filed as Exhibit No 3i to the

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1998 File No 0-511 and hereby

incorporated by reference

3-2 Amended and Restated Bylaws as amended December 2007Filed as Exhibit No 3-2 to the

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File No 0-511 and hereby

incorporated by reference

3-3 Certificate of Designation of Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Cobra Electronics

Corporation pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware

Filed as Exhibit No 3iii to the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2001

File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

Rights Agreement dated as of October 24 2001 between Cobra Electronics Corporation and

American Stock Transfer Trust Company as Rights AgentFiled as Exhibit to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 25 2001 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by

reference

10-1 Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of December 23 1992Filed as Exhibit No 10-19 to the

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1992 File No 0-511 and hereby

incorporated by reference

10-2 1995 Key Employees Nonqualified and Incentive Stock Option PlanFiled as Exhibit No 10-23 to

the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1995 File No 0-511 and hereby

incorporated by reference

10-3 Employment Agreement between Cobra Electronics Corporation and Anthony Mirabelli dated

January 31 1997Filed as Exhibit No 10-29 to the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1996 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-4 1998 Stock Option Plan as amendedFiled as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registration Statement on Form

S-8 of the Registrant dated September 16 1998 File No 333-63501 and hereby incorporated by

reference

10-5 Cobra Electronics Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan dated May 11 1999Filed

as Exhibit No 10-14 to the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1999

File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-6 Cobra Electronics Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan For Select Executives dated

December 21 1999Filed as Exhibit No 10-15 to the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1999 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-7 Cobra Electronics Corporation Executive Retirement Trust dated May 11 1999 between Cobra

Electronics Corporation and Gerald Laures as trustee for the benefit of James Bazet dated May 11

1999Filed as Exhibit No 10-16 to the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

1999 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-8 Employment Agreement addendum between Cobra Electronics Corporation and Anthony Mirabelli

dated April 22 1999Filed as Exhibit No 10-17 to the Registrants Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended March 31 2000 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

10-9 2000 Stock Option PlanFiled as Exhibit 4.3 of the Registration Statement on Form S-8 of the

Registrant dated July 25 2000 File No 333-42164 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-10 2000 Outside Directors Stock Option PlanFiled as Exhibit 4.3 of the Registration Statement on

Form S-8 of the Registrant dated July 25 2000 File No 333-42166 and hereby incorporated by

reference

10-11 2002 Outside Directors Stock Option PlanFiled as Exhibit 4.3 of the Registration Statement on

Form S-8 of the Registrant dated June 24 2002 File No 333-9 1078 and hereby incorporated by

reference

10-12 Employment Agreement between Cobra Electronics Corporation and James Bazet dated May 25

2004Filed as Exhibit No 10-29 to the Registrants Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30

2004 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-13 Technology Patent License Agreement between TeleAtlas North America Inc and Cobra

Electronics Corporation dated March 31 2006Filed as Exhibit No 10-ito the Registrants Form

10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2006 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

Confidential material appearing in this document was omitted and filed separately with the

Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with Section 24b of the Securities and

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and Rule 24b-2 promulgated thereunder Omitted information

was replaced with asterisks

10-14 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of October 19 2006 by and among

LaSalle Bank National Association as Lender and as Agent for the lenders and Cobra Electronics

CorporationFiled as Exhibit No 10-1 to the Registrants Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2006 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-15 Waiver and Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement Filed

as Exhibit No 10-1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 2007 File

No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-16 Employment Agreement between Cobra Electronics Corporation and Michael Smith dated

December 21 2007 Filed as Exhibit No 10-26 to the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2007 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-17 Loan and Security Agreement with The Private Bank and Trust and RBS Citizens N.A.Filed as

Exhibit No 10-1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 22 2008 File

No.0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

10-18 Executive Bonus Structure for 2008Filed as Exhibit No 10-ito the Registrants Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended March 31 2008 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

10-19 First Amendment to the Deferred Compensation Plan for Select ExecutivesFiled as Exhibit No
10-ito the Registrants Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2008 File No 0-511 and

hereby incorporated by reference

10-20 Cobra Electronics Corporation Severance Pay PlanFiled as Exhibit No 10-2 to the Registrants

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2008 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by
reference

10-21 First Amendment to Cobra Electronics Corporation Severance Pay PlanFiled as Exhibit No 10-3

to the Registrants Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2008 File No 0-511 and

hereby incorporated by reference

10-22 Employment Agreement Amendment between Cobra Electronics Corporation and Anthony
Mirabelli dated December 31 2008Filed as Exhibit No 10-ito Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated January 2009 File No 0-511 and hereby incorporated by reference

14-1 Cobra Electronics Code of Business Conduct and Ethics For Officers Senior Financial Accounting
and Financial Personnel and Directors adopted February 22 2006Filed as Exhibit No 14-1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 22 2006 File No 0-511 and hereby

incorporated by reference

21-1 Cobra Electronics Corporation Subsidiaries

23-1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP dated March 17 2009

31-1 Rule 3a14a/15d14a Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

31-2 Rule 3a14a/1 5d14a Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

32-1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

32-2 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Filed herewith

Executive compensation plan or arrangement
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated March 17 2009 with respect to the consolidated financial statements included

in the Annual Report of Cobra Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008 We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of said report in the Registration

Statements of Cobra Electronics Corporation and Subsidiaries on Forms S-8 File Nos 333-32609 effective

August 1997 333-63501 effective September 16 1998 333-42164 effective July 25 2000 333-42166

effective July 25 2000 and 333-91078 effective June 24 2002

Is/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 17 2009



Exhibit 31.1

Rule 13a 14a115d 14a Certification

of the Chief Executive Officer

James Bazet certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cobra Electronics Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 15d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-l5ffor the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period

in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal controls over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal
quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of

an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process
summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 17 2009 /s/ JAMEs BAzEr

James Bazet

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Rule 13a 14a/lSd 14a CertIfication

of the Chief Financial Officer

Michael Smith certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cobra Electronics Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and 15d- 151 for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period

in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal controls over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of

an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 17 2009 Is MICHAEL SMITH

Michael Smith

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Section 1350 Certification of

the Chief Executive Officer

James Bazet the chief executive officer of Cobra Electronics Corporation certify that the Annual

Report on Form 10-K of Cobra Electronics Corporation for the annual period ended December 31 2008 the

Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and ii the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of Cobra Electronics Corporation and its subsidiaries

1sf JAMES BAZET

James Bazet

March 17 2009



Exhibit 32.2

Section 1350 Certification of

the Chief Financial Officer

Michael Smith the chief financial officer of Cobra Electronics Corporation certify that the Annual

Report on Form 10-K of Cobra Electronics Corporation for the annual period ended December 31 2008 the

Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and ii the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of Cobra Electronics Corporation and its subsidiaries

1sf MICHAEL SMITH

Michael Smith

March 17 2009
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Letter to

Shareholders

2008 was tumultuous year

reflecting the turmoil in the financial

markets the overall decline in eco

nomic activity and the resulting

wave of retail bankruptcies Cobra

has emerged from this turbulence

as stronger more vibrant com

pany with substantial cash flow

and
strong

balance sheet We are

well positioned for the future as

global competitor with portfolio

of innovative product lines and ex

panded marketing and distribution

channels

Cobras strength derives from our

substantial brand equity continued

innovation and loyal and dedicat

ed employee base The Cobra brand

is known globally for reliability and

value Continued innovations such

as Rewind-Say-AgainTM for marine

radios and two-way radios and

GPS-enabled photo-enforcement

alert features provide reason to

buy even for consumers who are

pulling back in tough economy

The SnooperTM brand which is the

focus of Performance Products Lim

iteds marketing and merchandising

is among the best known in the UK

and is spreading throughout Europe

as the company expands its mar

keting and distribution channels

PPL also is known for innovation

introducing in 2008 navigation

system
for trucks that provides safe

and efficient routing based on the

vehicles unique characteristics and

tracking device that can be used

to locate and recover lost
pets or

personal assets

Cobra has truly established

global presence in the past
several

years
Sales outside of the United

States accounted for 28.1 percent

of total sales in 2008 as compared

to 13.4 percent only two years

earlier Cobras products are sold

in more than 70 countries around

the world including countries in

South America the Caribbean

Europe the Middle East and Asia

This geographic diversity provides

ever increasing opportunities to sell

Cobras products and increases our

brand
equity on daily basis

At the 2009 International

Consumer Electronics Show Cobra

unveiled new lines of two-way ra

dios and radar detectors as well

as the global AURATM database of

speed camera and hazardous driv

ing locations Our continued inno

vations such as Rewind-Say-Again

and VibrAlert have cemented

Cobras leading position in the

two-way radio market and we have

been selected as the exclusive sup

plier of two-way radios to one of

the worlds largest retailers for 2009

COBRA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION



Providing drivers with photo-en

forcement alerts with radar detection

capabilities will enhance safety and

further Cobras global lead in these

categories PPL also is contribut

ing to the tradition of innovation

with the LYNXtM communications

capability providing drivers with

real-time AURA database updates

including
alerts provided by their

fellow drivers through the use of

GPRS community network

The turmoil in the financial

markets and Cobras resulting low

market capitalization led to the re

quirement that Cobra write down

the
goodwill on its balance sheet in

2008 While we have complied with

these accounting requirements we

do not believe that the write down

reflects the real underlying value of

our companys cash flow or brand

equity Although we incurred net

loss of $18.8 million in 2008 ad

justed EBITDA was $10.4 million

increasing by 458
percent over ad

justed EBITDA in 2007 We also

concluded 2008 with solid balance

sheet carrying only $15.7 million

of net debt interest hearing debt

Allow mc to close this years letter

with tribute to our founder Carl

Korn After 47
years at the helm of

Cobra first as Chairman and CEO

and then as Chairman Carl stepped

aside this
year

and was appointed by

the Board of Directors as Chairman

Emeritus For the
past

twelve
years

Carl has been my friend and mentor

and am gratified that the Board

has elected me to succeed him The

entire Cobra him
ily

wishes Carl well

in this latest phase of his life

Thank you for your continued

support
of Cobra Electronics

Sincerely

Jim Bazet

Chairman of the Board President

and Chief Executive Officer

March 27 2009
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Review
Using GPS technology Cobra new

AURA Camera and Driving Ha ard datab se

ert drivers to fixed spe and red light cameras

known peed traps and dangerous intersection

Cobra new high performance 2009

dar line features incr ased nd protection and

includes six unit compatible with Cobras AURA
datab se

PPL introduced high

qu lity navigation unit providing sate and efficient

routing for trucks throughout urope based on

th size and weight of the vehicle Truckmat TM
is

urrently being used by DAF and Volvo truck and

thousand of fleet and individual driv rs

PPLs European dat base LYNX

with AURA Live us GPRS technology to

utomatically update it built in speed camera

database Additionally LYNX can share

coordin tes of speed traps with all other ers

driving in the area

LTD BT Citi ens Band Radio the

worlds first Citizen Band radio to offer B/uetooth

wir less technology allows drivers to make and

receiv phone calls through their Citizens Band

dio

Cobra stands for innovation and value it is through the

Companys continued development of innovative solutions in

all product categories that it builds value Cobra delivers on the

consumers ongoing expectation of superior value in its products

further
increasing the equity in the Cobra brand

Fiscal year 2008 saw the continued success of its core product

lines new inroads in the marine market and accolades for innovative

products in the United States and abroad New synergies were

achieved with Cobrds European operations at Performance Products

Limited PPL with the launch of an emerging global red light and

driving hazard database

COBRA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION



EXPANSION OF EUROPEAN

OPERATIONS WITH PPL

Hitting
its stride in 2008 Cobia expanded

international
operations as PPI produced

numerous product success stories PPI

52000 Trucknwte was the first portable

satellite naAgation device released in

Furope developed specifically for tiucks

and other
large

vehicles The concept was

further expanded and specialized in the

52000 Ventura TM another poi table sat

ellite navigation device for motor homes

and RVs
featuring super-rich content

from ACS1 with camping data foi 8600-

plus campsites across hurope

PPL released the Shotsaver1 its first

UPS golf range
finder in the United

Kingdom and Snooper Lfacking with its

5PT200 and 5PT220 an ultra-compact

poitable
tracker

designed specifically
for

use with
pets

In its continued drive to produce the

best speed camera locators on the market

PPL released LYNX with AURA live

database in February 2009 LYNX combines both GPS and GPRS

technologies
and enables communit of users to share the positions

of mobile
speed traps and patrol cars in addition to alerting them to

fixed speed camera traps Notably 2009 marks the 30th anniversary

of the Snooper brand

NORTH AMERICA PRODUCTS

DEBUT AT CES LAS VEGAS

The dexelopment and product perfor

malice of 2008 powered the premier of

product lines at the January 2009

CES With ness offei
ings

in all its eat

egories Cobra continues to bring its

innovation and valtte to the consumer

Des eloped over the course of 2008

Cobra launched the AURA Camera and

Dris ing a7ard database its revolutionary

global driving alert database at CES 2009

Devices armed with AURA which stands

for Advanced Universal Road Alert warn

drivers of thousands of
driving

threats that

could catise unintended traffic violations

as ssell as accidents

lhe first AURA-ready devices offered

in North America are six of Cobras high-

end 2009 radar detectors including the

XRS 9%OG and XRS RIOG

Cobra believes AURA-ready radar des ices

ate just the fitst of
range

of additional

applications in North America PPI has

alrcad licnscd th AURA database to

mobile phones online map interfaces and

nasigation systems
in

uropean markets



BLUEIOOTH WIRFI ES
TECHNOLOGY

Building on the success of the

industrys first Bluctooi/i Citizens

Band radio Cobra continties to in

corporate Bluetooth wireless technoh

ogy into its ever evolving product

lines Seeing the added benefits of

safety and convenience for its com

sumer the Company has integrated

Bluetooth wireless
technology into

everything
from handsfi cc cell

phone devices to marine products to

Citizens Band radios

CITIZEN BAND RADIOS

he 29 WX NW Citizens Band

radio successor to the worlds first

cx er Bluetooth enabled Citizens

Band radio the 29 LID BT from

Cobra combines B/ueiooth xx ireless

technology with the Cobra exclttsive

Night Watch clectrolu minescent il

luminated front panel and access to

se en NOAA xxeather channels and

alerts

AGGRESSIVE EXPANSION

IN MARINE ELECTRONICS

In its assertive purstiit of
top posi

tions in its categories Cobra contin

ues to be committed to transfoi

ing marine corn inunications As

evidence of this putsuit the Cobra

Marine division won
prestigious

DAME awatd in marine electron

ics at the Marine Fctupment lTrade

Show METS in Amsterdam

Netherlands for its revolutionary

MR P300 BI xxatetproof handset

with Bluetooth xs ireless tcchnology

for mobile phones Furtheo Cobra

added to its extensive line of marine

radios with the addition of the

4R HH125 handheld HI The

MR HH125 radio is compact full

feattued radio that complements

Cobras current line offering profes

sional-level features at recreational

prices

TWO WAY RADIOS

Unxeiled at the 2009 CFS Cobras

GMRSIFRS two way micro IA/K

radio line includes six SKUs xxith ul

tra-clear high-performance reception

and Cobra exeltisive features such as

Vi brA Zen and Rewind SayAgain

LI RB AT ON



Updated to provide the most enhanced Features available

in
two-way radios the new series features extended

range

capability in addition to RoHS lead-free materials and

eco-fi iendly recyclable packaging

POWER INVERERS

The Company also launched new line of
high performance

power inverters offering consumers versatility and features at

competitive price points This is Cobras first
complete line of

power inverters to offer USB output
in all its models and

includes three inverter models small enough to transport in

briefcase backpack or purse

CONCLUSON
Well

positioned
for 2009 Cobra remains on its couise

aggressis ely purstung grossth and leadership in ness and

expanding markets and categories and perpetually committed

to bringing innos ation while
providing superior aloe to its

customers around the globe

Above From the CXR900 two way handheld radio with the maximum power allowed by law and the Cobra

exclusive Rewind Say-A gain feature to the CR1 2575 power inverter with 2500 watts of continuous power

to the SPr22O an ultra compact portable tracker from Snooper designed specifically for use with pets to the

award winning MR 5300 BY with MicroBlue technology noise canceling handset auto redial call log and

phone book Cobra brings products to market offering consumers excellent value and superb innovation
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Weighted average
shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

2008

124745

86576

38169

34175

20084

16090

997

1143

18230
598

11

Years Ended December 31

2007

$155935

124534

31401

39634

8233

1655
1089

8799

4396

19
4422

2006

$153695

123742

29953

32620

2667

479

63

3083

1449

1630

Dividends declared
per common share 0.16 0.16 0.16

In thousands except per share amounts

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative
expense

Impairment of goodwill

Loss from operations

Interest
expense

Other expense income

Loss before income taxes

Tax provision benefit

Minority interest

Net loss

Net loss
per common share

18839

Basic 2.91 0.68 0.25

Diluted 2.91 0.68 0.25

6471 6458 6482

6471 6458 6482

COBRA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION



Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31

in thousands
except per

share amounts 2008

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash

Receivables net of allowance for claims and doubtful accounts of $107 in 2008 and $205 in 2007

Inventories primarily finished goods net

Deferred income taxes current

Prepaid assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment at cost

Buildings and improvements

Tooling and equipment ________

Accumulated
depreciation

Land
________

Property plant
and equipment net

Other assets

Cash surrender value of officers life insurance policies

Deferred income taxes non-current

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and commissions

Accrued advertising and sales promotion costs

Accrued product warranty costs

Accrued income taxes

Other accrued liabilities
_________________________

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term bank debt net of current maturities

Deferred compensation

Deferred income taxes

Other long-term liabilities
________________________

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interest

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock $1
par

value 1000000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock $.33 1/3
par

value 12000000 shares authorized 7039100 issued for 2008 and 2007

Paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated comprehensive ioss

Treasury stock at cost 567820 shares for 2008 and 2007
______________________

Total shareholders equity _______________________
Total liabilities and shareholders equity

2007

1985

18017

27464

6130

1705

1497

56798

1860

26804

33054

8715

1568

338
75339

5996

21512

27508

21962
230

5776

5442

21554

26996

20423

230

6803

3034 4280

2004

11997

11218 15559

168 340

16424 32176

78998 114318

1370 1240

2923 7273

1124 847

1174 2093

897 3440

495 266

2584 4505

10567 19664

16301 18745

6516 6320

1983 3772

1077 679

25877 29516

36444 49180

24 23

2345 2345

20354 20101

26305 46179

2637 327

46367 68952

3837 3837
42530 65115

78998 114318
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2008

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006

Net ioss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows from
operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization

Goodwill impairment

Impairment product software tooling and packaging

Deferred income taxes

Loss gain on cash surrender value CSV life insurance

Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit from stock options exercised

Minority interest

Changes in assets and liabilities

Receivables

Inventories

Other current assets

Other long-term assets

Accounts payable

Accrued income taxes

Accrued liabilities

Deferred compensation

Deferred income

Other long-term liabilities

Net cash flows provided by used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures

Loan receivable

Intangible assets

Premiums on CSV life insurance

Purchase of Performance Products Limited

Net cash flows used in provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank borrowings

Dividends paid to shareholders

Repayment of officers note receivable

Transactions related to exercise of stock options net

Other

Net cash flows used in provided by financing activities

Effect of
exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase decrease in cash

Cash at beginning of
year

Cash at end of
year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash
paid during

the period for

Interest

Income taxes net of refunds

266 3031 2757

1005 3251 2503
1558 17 12

253 223 48

11 19

8329 1629 2550

4250 3720 4696
1162 681 1516
1888 2456 1002

4142 1128 747
157 2029 1004

4357 843 1166

195 463 796

310 749 950
212 409 195

15008 1050 3356

1166 1558 1623
3374

3448

312 295 308
8464 21898
9942 1853 23903

2314 3311 16674

1035 1031 1041
400

288 534
29

3349 2597 15499

1592 288 222

125 18 4826
1860 1878 6704

1985 1860 1878

18839 4422 1630

5296 7925

20084

5852

99 12

1008 1873 182

314 1533 377

10 COBRA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION



Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Quarter nded

In tIwusooas esapr March June 31 September 30 1ecemher 31

per s/rust urn000ts 2008 2008 200 2008 200 2008 200

Net sales $28858 832036 $34318 39215 $33242 39283 28327 545401

Gross profit 8916 8088 11440 8380 904 9T33 8109 5200

Net earnings loss 81 20 1710 434 142 404 20772 3672
Net earnings loss

per
share

Basic 0.01 011 0.26 007 0.02 0.06 321 05
Diluted 0.01 11 0.26 0.07 0.02 0.06 3.21 0.57

he sum of the
quarrerlt net earnings loss

per
shaw amounts nat nor equal the annual amount because net earnings loss per

share arc calculated

indcpcrrdentb for each quarter

Adjusted EBITDA

The following table shows the reconciliation of net income to FBI DA and adjusted FBITDA

1-aided Dece irber 31

In s3omas u/i 2008 200

Net loss income 18839 4422
Depreciation and arnorn7ation 5296 7925

Interest expense 997 1655

Income tax provision 598 4396
Minorit interest 11 19

EBIIDA 11937 81

Stock option expense 253 223

CSV loss 1558
Deferred revenue database 426

Impairment 20350 3031

Other noncash items 300 3082

Adjusted EBII1 10350 7100

1-131 IDA ieprcsents earnings before interest tacs depreciation and amortization Adjusted lBI IDA represents SI plus the applicable adjustrrrcnts required

to agree ss ith the 11311 DA measurement for compliance with the fin lucia1 eos enants of the fompanys lendcrs lie

ompane
bclievs FBI DA is useful

pt
rfou mancc indicatot and is

treqetentls
used

b3 management securities anals sts and ins Coors to judge operating perlbrmance hetis ecu time periods and
among

othcr companies he ompant uses adjusted 511 to issess operating pemformance and ensure compliance with financial cosenants

15111 md adjusted at-c Non YeP performance indicators rm-- .-L
in conjunction with GA pertorrrrance tncasurerrients such as net

saL operating profit and net income to csaluatc the Conmp urns operati III 1A and adjusted 1511 DA arc not alteruatises to net income om

ushr flow 1mm
opcr utrons dctcr mined in iccoid rncc ss tb tAP 1-ott id udjusted 13111 to is not he comp ible to the rlcul rtron of

similarh titled measures reported hi oilier companies

11



Five Year Financial Summary

cars ndcd Decrnbr 31

In thoaVand3 ucpi pr V/an mioun 2008 200 2006 200

OPERATING DATA

Net sales 124745 155935 153695 13308i 12287

Net loss earnings 18839 4422 1630 11984 2381

Net loss earnings pcr
share

Basic 2.91 0.68 0.25 1.86 0.37

Diluted 291 0.68 0.25 1.81 0.36

AS OF DECEMBER 31

fotal assets 78998 114318 $1 l658 92922 82i94

ong-term debt 16301 18745 15614

Rcfkc scquisiiion ol Pu 1o nc Producu mmd on 3ctobu 20 2006

The flnan ial statements and selected financial data included herein hase not been audited he information was dcri\ ed from the

full consolidated financial statements fot the car ended December 31 2008 which weie presented in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America and which acre audited by Grant Ihornton ii in accordance with

standards of the Public Company Accounting Osersight Boaid United States Copies of the full consolidated financial statements

and the independent auditors
report

that expressed an unqualified opinion dated Maich 17 2009 are included in the Companys

Annual Report on form 101K filed with the .S Securities and Lxdsangc Commissionsshich is asailable upon request
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Corporate Information

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Grant Thornton LLP

Chicago Illinois

CORPORATE COUNSEL

Sidley Austin LLP

Chicago Illinois

TRANSFER AGENT

AND REGISTRAR

Shareholder address
changes should be

sent directly to

American Stock Transfer Trust Co

59 Maiden Lane

New York NY 10007

718 921-8206

FORM 10-K AND

PROXY STATEMENT

copy of the companys Form 10-K

and Proxy Statement will be sent to

shareholders upon written
request to

Michael Smith Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer or by e-mail

to msmith@cobra.com

ANNUAL MEETING

You are cordially invited to Cobra

Electronics Corporations annual meeting

of shareholders to be held on Tuesday

May 12 2009 at 1100 a.m The meeting

will be held at the offices of Sidley Austin

LLP One South Dearborn St Chicago

IL 60603 in Room 38N22

Record date for
voting at the meeting is

April 2009

SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT

This
report

is in summary format It

is intended to present 2008 results in

simple readable style The more detailed

operational and financial material is part

of the Annual Report on Form 10-K

CORPORATE OFFICERS

James Bazet

Chairman of the Board President

and Chief Executive Officer

Anthony Mirabelli

Senior Vice President

Marketing Sales

Michael Smith

Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Gerald Laures

Vice PresidentFinance

and
Corporate Secretary

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James Bazet Chairman of the Board

President and Chief Executive Officer

Cobra Electronics Corporation

William Carmichael

Trustee of Columbia Funds Series Trust

Columbia Funds Master investment

Trust Columbia Funds Variable Insurance

Trust and Banc of America Funds Trust

and director of The Finish Line Inc

Spectrum Brands Inc and Simmons

Company

Carl Korn Chairman Emeritus

Founder Cobra Electronics Corporation

John Lupo

Director of Spectrum Brands Inc

Citi Trends Inc and AB Electrolux

and former Senior Merchandising and

Marketing Principal of Renaissance

Partners LC

Ian Miller

CEO/Founder

The Brand Practice LLC

Business and Brand Strategy Consultancy

Sam Park

Business and Strategy Development

Lead Industrial Specialties

Celanese Corporation

Robert Rohleder

Retired Partner

Deloitte Touche LLP

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Cobra Electronics Corporation

6500 West Cortland Street

Chicago Illinois 60707

Phone 773 889-8870

Fax 773 889-1678

Consumer Service 773 889-3087

Website www.cobra.com

COBRA ELECTRONICS

EUROPE LIMITED

Jean Louis Poot

Managing Director

Dungar House

Northumberland Avenue

Dun Laoghaire

Co Dublin Ireland

Phone 353.1 236.7007

Fax 353.1 663.9048

COBRA ELECTRONICS

HK LIMITED

Daniel Schiff

General Manager

Suite 190 1-4 Tower

The Gateway

25 Canton Road Tsimshatsui

Kowloon Hong Kong

Phone 852 2369 0211

Fax 852 2724 4875

PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS

LIMITED

James Bazet Chairman

Jason Ballard Sales Director

Steven Ballard Marketing Director

Shaun Tolley Financial Director

Cleaver House

Sarus Court

Manor Park

Runcorn

Cheshire United Kingdom

Phone 0870 787 0700

Fax 0870 787 1700
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